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Item 1. Business

Certain statements in this Annual Repmrt Form 10K, including certain statements containet
“Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analydi Financial Condition and Results of Operatidns,
constitute “forward-looking statementsw/ithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securitfes of 1933, a
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchangef 1934, as amended. The words or phrasesliedh
“expects,” “may affect,” “may depend,” “believes;gstimate,” “project’and similar words and phrases
intended to identify such forward-looking statenseruch forwardeoking statements are subject to var
known and unknown risks and uncertainties and Ska#tions you that any forwatdeking informatiot
provided by or on behalf of SIGA is not a guararaééuture performance. SIGA’actual results could difi
materially from those anticipated by such forwéndking statements due to a number of factors, sof
which are beyond SIGA’ control, including (i) the risk that potentialoplucts that appear promising to Sl
or its collaborators cannot be shown to be effmasior safe in subsequent miatical or clinical trials, (i) th
risk that SIGA or its collaborators will not obtaappropriate or necessary governmental approvatsatdxe
these or other potential products, (iii) the ribktt SIGA may not be able to obtain anticipated fugdor its
development projects or other needed funding,tfig)risk that SIGA may not be able to secure fugdiom
anticipated government contracts and grants, (g)ribk that SIGA may not be able to secure or es
adequate legal protection, including patent pratacfor its products, (vi) the risk that regulatapproval fo
SIGA’s products may require further or additional tegtimat will delay or prevent approval, (vii) thelatle
and competitive nature of the biotechnology induys(viii) changes in domestic and foreign economix
market conditions, and (ix) the effect of fedesthte and foreign regulation on SIGAbusinesses. All su
forward4ooking statements are current only as of the dateshich such statements were made. SIGA dog
undertake any obligation to publicly update anyward{ooking statement to reflect events or circumsta
after the date on which any such statement is mattereflect the occurrence of unanticipated event

Introduction
SIGA Technologies, Inc. is referred tomtighout this report as “SIGA,” “the Company,” “wet “us.”

SIGA is a biotechnology corporation incorporatedDelaware on December 28, 1995. We air
discover, develop and commercialize novel anfectives for serious infectious diseases. Theomfgcus o
our developmental and commercialization activiteeen products for use in defense against bioldgieafare
agents such as Smallpox and Arenaviruses (hemacriiagers). Our lead product, S#6, is an orall
administered antdral drug that targets the smallpox virus. In Daber 2005 the Food and Di
Administration (FDA) accepted our InvestigationaéW Drug (IND) application for SP46 and granted tl
program “Fast-Track” status. In December 2006 tBé\ jranted Orphan Drug designation to 346 for the
prevention and treatment of smallpox. Our atir& programs are designed to prevent or limitrdygication o
the viral pathogen. Our aritifectives programs are aimed at the increasingisioas problem of drt
resistance. As a result of the success of our teffar develop products for use against agents abdica
warfare, we have not spent significant resourcdartber the development of our anti-infective teglogies.

Product Candidates and Market Potential
SIGA Biological Warfare Defense ProducbRfolio

Anti-Smallpox Drug Smallpox virus is classified as a Category A adsnthe Center for Disease Control
Prevention (CDC) and is considered one of the maigtificant threats for use as a biowarfare agértiile
deliberate introduction of any pathogenic agentlaidne devastating, we believe the one that holdgteate:
potential for harming the general U.S. populati®Smallpox. At present there is no effective drutpwhich
to treat or prevent Smallpox infections. To addtéss serious risk, SIGA scientists have identifeetbad dru
candidate, ST46, which inhibits vaccinia, cowpox, ectromeliaofmsepox), monkeypox, camelpox, .
variola replication in cell culture, but not othenrelated viruses. Given the safety concerns vhighadurrer
smallpox vaccine, there should be several usearfoeffective smallpox antiviral drug: prophylactigato
protect the noimmune who are at risk to exposure; therapeuticédlyeduce mortality and morbidity in the
infected with the smallpox virus; and lastly, as adjunct to the smallpox vaccine in order to redtiw
frequency of serious adverse




events due to the live virus used for vaccinat®IGA scientists are also working on several ottmealfpox
drug targets, including the viral proteinases, &vedop additional drug candidates for use in coiuom
therapy if necessary. In December 2005, the FDA@mu our IND application for S246. In June 2006 w
successfully completed the first human clinicalesafstudy of ST-246. The trial showed the drug ¢owell-
tolerated in healthy human volunteers at all testedly administered doses. In addition, data figiood level
exposure was sufficient to support once a day dosihe Phase | clinical trial was performed at Aubed
Biomedical Research, Inc. Clinical Research CeimteiHackensack, NJ. The study was a douiied,
randomized, placebo controlled, and ascendingsidgse study. An additional Phase | clinical twak starte:
in February 2007. The trial was a 21 day, escaatimultipledose, Phase | safety, tolerability
pharmacokinetics study of SM6 at three different dosages in healthy voluste€he trial was performed
the Orlando Clinical Research Center in Orlandoriga. The study was completed in December 200 7na
reported that the preliminary results indicated tha drug is safe and well tolerated at all telstses. In 200¢
ST-246 became the first drug ever to demonstrate 1p@%ection against human smallpox virus in a pra
trial conducted at the federal Centers for Disg@asatrol and Prevention (CDC). Later in 2006, in tnan-
human primate trials the drug demonstrated 100%geption to animals injected with high doses of meypgox
virus. One study was sponsored by the Nationaltinstof Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIAID) tie
National Institutes of Health (NIH). The seconddstuvas conducted by the U.S. Army Medical Rese
Institute of Infectious Diseases (USAMRIID) and wasded by the Department of Defers@hreat Reductio
Agency. In late 2006, SZ46 received Orphan Drug designation for both teatment and prevention
smallpox. During 2006, SIGA received grants frone tNIH totaling approximately $21 million for tl
continued development of the drug. In 2007, we ivecea grant from the NIH for a total of approxirelst
$600,000, to support the development of ST-248rtreat of smallpox vaccine-related adverse events.

Anti-Arenavirus DrugArenaviruses are hemorrhagic fever viruses thae limeen classified as Categ:
A agents by the CDC due to the great risk that theye to public health and national safety. Amdmg
Category A viruses recognized by the CDC, therefaue hemorrhagic fever arenaviruses (Junin, Mach
Guanarito and Sabia viruses) for which there aré&Dé approved treatments available. In order to tntieis
threat, SIGA scientists have identified a lead doagpdidate, S94, which has demonstrated signific
antiviral activity in cell culture assays againgravirus pathogens. We have also demonstratethéhapeutic
efficacy of ST294 in a preliminary animal challenge study. SIGgoehas programs against other hemorrh
fever viruses including Lassa virus, Dengue FeRift Valley Fever, Lymphocytic choriomeningitis us
(LCMV) and Ebola. We believe that the availabilidy hemorrhagic fever virus antiviral drugs will adds
national and global security needs by acting asigaifcant deterrent and defense against the us
arenaviruses as weapons of bioterrorism. In 200BASeceived a three year grant of $6.0 millionnfrahe
NIH to support the development of antiviral drugs fassa fever viru

Bacterial Commensal Vectar©ur scientists have developed methods that aflesentially any ger
sequence to be expressed in Generally Regardedafes (GRAS) granpositive bacteria, with the foreig
protein being displayed on the surface of the lregombinant organisms. Since these organisms
inexpensive to grow and are very stable, this teldgy affords the possibility of rapidly producidiye
recombinant vaccines against any variety of bialagagents that might be encountered, suctBasllus
anthracis(anthrax) or Smallpox. SIGA scientists are workiogdevelop an alternative vaccine with impro
safety for use in preventing human disease caugegathogenic orthopoxviruses such as variola vifius
accomplish this goal we are utilizing our BCV (@l commensal vector) technology. BCV utilizesurgr
positive commensal bacteria, suchSieptococcus gordoniji(S. Gordonii) to express heterologous antiger
interest, either in secreted form or attachedstexternal surface.

Antibiotics: To combat the problems associated with emergimiatic resistance, our scientists .
developing drugs designed to address a new tartiet bacterial adhesion organelles. Specifically ubing
novel enzymes required for the transport and/cerabdy of the proteins and structures that bactrexdaire for
adhesion or colonization, we are developing newsgla of broad spectrum antibiotics. This may pr@heable
in providing prompt treatment to individuals enctarmg an unknown bacterial pathogen in the aifomd

supply.
Market for Biological Defense Programs

From 2001 through 2007, the Federal Gawent has allocated over $16 billion in State amchll
terrorism preparedness funding from the Departro&htomeland Security, Health and Human Services and
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Justice. In 2006, approximately $5.0 billion wasedted for emergency, preparedness and respondimfu A
similar amount was enacted for 2007 with a slightréase projected for 2008. The Federal budge
defending against catastrophic threats fundinguites not only stockpiling countermeasures thatarsently
available, but funding to develop new countermeastor agents that currently have none, and nenergéior
countermeasures that are safer and more effet¢tarethose that presently exist. Current BioShiegislatior
allows the Federal Government to buy critically aex vaccines and medications as soon as expeds Hwy
they are safe and effective enough to be added e tStrategic National Stockg
(http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/budget/ fy2008/pdffPne of the major concerns in the field of biotad
warfare agents is Smallpoxatthough declared extinct in 1980 by the World ke&rganization (WHO), the
is a threat that a rogue nation or a terrorist growvay have an illegal inventory of the virus thause
Smallpox. The only legal inventories of the virus &eld under extremely tight security at the Ch@ilanta
Georgia and at a laboratory in Russia. As a resuthis threat, the U.S. government has announsedtent t
make significant expenditures on finding a way tartteract the virus if turned loose by terroristsoa ¢
battlefield. The Congressional Budget Office (tieBO”) reported that the DHS projects the acquisition@
million doses of new Smallpox vaccines over a thyear period, commencing in 2005. Further the ¢
reports that the DHS will spend an additional $llidw to replace expired stocks in 20Q013. The mark
opportunity for our biological warfare defense prots has not been quantified as yet beyond thenpakec
obtain a share of the approximately $9 billion thderal government is committing to support regeancthe
coming year.

The FDA amended its regulations, effectiune 30, 2002, so that certain new drug and diaai
products used to reduce or prevent the toxicitgt@fmical, biological, radiological, or nuclear stamees ma
be approved for use in humans based on evidene#eaztiveness derived only from appropriate anistatlie:
and any additional supporting data. We believe thi& change could make it possible for us to haute
products which have been proven effective in anigtatlies to be approved for sale within a relagivaior
time.

SIGA Antivirals Product Portfolio

SIGA currently has the following antiMigrograms which are in various stages of develagmanging
from initial research and screening to Phase | luatiaical trials: Smallpox antiviral, New World Anaviru:
antiviral, Old World Arenavirus antiviral, Filovieu(Ebola & Marburg) antivirals, Dengue Fever viangiviral,
and Bunyavirus antivirals. Currently there are ppraved antivirals available against any of thesases.

SIGA Antibiotics Product Portfolio

Our anti-infectives program is targetethgpally toward drug-resistant bacteria and htagicquirec
infections. According to estimates from the CDCpraimately two million hospitakcquired infections occ
each year in the United States. Our amfiecctives approaches aim to block the ability atteria to attach
and colonize human tissue, thereby blocking infectit the first stage in the infection process.cBsnparisor
antibiotics available today act by interfering wifither the structure or the metabolism of a baiteell,
affecting its ability to survive and to reprodudéo currently available antibiotics target the attaent of
bacterium to its target tissue. We believe thatptaventing attachment, the bacteria should beilyeeléarec
by the body’'s immune system. SIGA has Gram-posit@&amnegative and broad spectrum antibi
technologies.

Market for Anti-infective Programs

There are currently approximately 160lionl prescriptions written for antibiotics annuaily the U.¢
(Wenzel RP, Edmond MB. Managing antimicrobial resise.N Engl J Med 2000;343:1961-Band it it
estimated that the worldwide market for antibiotiegs worth approximately $25.0 billion in 2(
( Christoffersen, R.E. Antibiotics—an investment twortaking? Nature Biotechnology24 , 1512 -151¢
(2006)). Although our products are too early in @epment to make accurate assessments of how heg
might compete, if successfully developed and markeagainst other products currently existing c
development at this time, the successful captureveh a relatively small global market share cdeéd to
large dollar volume of sales. Some of the antigithiat SIGA is developing are for biowarfare agemtd th:
market for that area is currently unknown, howethegre is funding available to purchase these diru§sojec
Bioshield as well as through the Department of Defe Markets for the other antiviral programs &@/&vary
widely depending on the virus and where they amesric. Each of these programs will be assessed
individual basis as they approach the New Drug &apibn stage.
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Technology
Antiviral Technology: Two Approaches

SIGA has two approaches to the discoaeny development of new antiviral compounds: rafiainag
design and highkroughput screening (HTS). For rational drug desBIGA applies advanced recej
structurebased Virtual Ligand Screening technology for lidémhibitor discovery. The analysis of -
structure reveals potentially “drugable” pocketfieTtechnology allows us to utilize the thidimensione
structure of the target receptor to screen larg#uali compound collections as well as database
commercially available compounds and prioritizenthir subsequent experimental validation. Ratialral
design is also used to develop structure actielgtionships and lead optimization.

For HTS SIGA uses whole cell virus inkitm assays, pseudotype virus inhibition assaysyelt as
validated target biochemical assays. SIGA currehdly a 200,000 small molecule compound libraridnst
that is utilized for screening in these variousagss This strategy allows for both target spedific targe
neutral screening and identification of novel ainivcompounds. Compounds are also screened fagitpin
various cell lines to develop a therapeutic ind€l (vhich is the concentration that the compountbisc tc
50% of the cells (CC50) divided by the concentratid compound required to inhibit 50% of the vi(E&C50
(TI= CC50/EC50). Once hits are identified with ateptable Tl they are selected for chemical optitidr
and proceed in to the antiviral drug developmepéie.

Collaborative Research and Licenses

We have entered into the following licenagreements, collaborative research arrangemerd
contracts:

National Institutes of Health . In October and August 2006, the NIH awarded $3&5 million, 3 yee
contract and a $4.8 million, Pear grant, respectively, both to advance the deweént of our lead dn
candidate, ST-246. In September 2007, we receivaaear, $600,000 grant supporting the developme
ST-246 treatment of smallpox vaccine-related advengents. In July 2007, the NIH awarded us a yea-
grant for a total of $530,000 to support our stpepgram. In September 2006, the NIH awarded us.@
million, 3-year grant for the continued development of ounaréruses drug candidates. In August 2004
were awarded four grants totaling approximately .$1tillion to support our work on Smallpox ¢
Arenaviruses. The 2004 grants were acquired asqfaour acquisition of certain assets from ViroRhe
Incorporated (“Viropharma”)For the years ending December 31, 2007, 2006, 808,2ve have recogniz
revenue from the grants of $2,568,000, $3,723,@0(@ $6,596,000, respectively. In 2007 and 200€
recognized $2,210,000 and $171,000, respectivelgvenue from our October 2006 contract with thid.N

SIGA receives cash payments from the NHder its grants on monthly and semdnthly bases, ai
under its contract on a monthly basis, as the vimperformed and the related revenue is recogni@HalA’s
current NIH grants and contract do not include stdae payments. The agreements can be cancelledifier
performance and if cancelled, the Company willneaeive additional funds under the agreements.

As part of our operational strategy wetireely submit grants to the NIH. However, theradsassurant
that we will receive additional grants.

United States Army Medical Research and Merial Command. In September 2005, we entered in
$3.2 million, one year contract with the United t8&a Army Medical Research and Material Comn
(USAMRMC) for the rapid identification and treatnteaf antiviral diseases. SIGA completed its work ur
the contract unddmudget and as a result will refund approximateid,$00 to the USAF, which was 1
recognized as revenue by the Company.

United States Air Forceln November 2006, we received a $1.4 million, oparycontract with the A
Force Medical Service for the development of coumeasures against Dengue viruses and other eltae(
viral agents. In November 2006 we also receivechayear, $900,000 contract to aid the USAF Sp
Operations



Command (USAFSOC) in its development of specifit-aimal agents. For the years ended December 31,
and 2006 we recognized revenues of $1,921,000 24d,800, respectively, from these contracts. S
receives cash payments from the USAF on a montidjsbas the work is performed and the relatedney &
recognized. SIGA’s current contracts with the US#dnot include milestone payments.

United States Army Medical Research Acgsition Activity. In December 2002, we entered into a
year contract with the U.S. Army Medical Researatgéisition Activity (USAMRAA) to develop a drug
treat Smallpox. The contract start date was Jantiar2003 for the total amount of $1.6 million. Ara
payments over the term of the agreement were appabaly $400,000. In the years ended December (316
2005, and 2004 we recognized revenue of $412,007,800, and $425,000, respectively. SIGA recebasd
payments from USAMRAA under this contract on a nhbnbasis, as the work was performed and the @
revenue was recognized.

Saint Louis University. On September 1, 2005, we entered into an agreemiht Saint Loui:
University for the continued development of oneoaf Smallpox drugs. The agreement is funded thrabe
NIH. Under the agreement, SIGA received $1.0 nmillduring the term of September 1, 2005 to Febr@&:
2006. Revenues were recognized as services wefermped. In 2006 and 2005, we recognized revenu
$225,000 and $775,000 from the agreement.

TransTech Pharma, IncIn October 2002, we entered into a drug discoveiaboration agreeme
with TransTech Pharma, Inc., a related party (“Sfg@cth Pharma”)Under the agreement, SIGA ¢
TransTech Pharma collaborate on the discoverymigdtion and development of lead compounds to icx
therapeutic agents. No revenues were recogniz006, 2005, and 2004 from this collaboration. Siae:
not expect receipt or disbursement of funds underagreement with TransTech Pharma for the negeth
five years.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our commercial success will depend irt parour and our collaboratorability to obtain and mainta
patent protection for our proprietary technologidsyg targets and potential products and to effely
preserve our trade secrets. Because of the sulasthnigth of time and expense associated withdimi
potential products through the development andlatgry clearance processes to reach the marketptae
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogaon obtaining patent and trade secret proteciibe
patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnotmmpanies can be highly uncertain and involve pler
legal and factual questions. No consistent poliegarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotedbgy
patents has emerged to date. Accordingly, we capreatict the type and breadth of claims allowedhiest
patents.

We have licensed the rights to eightesksU.S. patents and three issued European paldrdse paten
have varying lives and they are related to therneldgy licensed from Rockefeller for the strep abichm-
positive products. We have one additional pateptiegtion in the U.S. and one application in Europkating
to this technology. We are joint owner with WashargUniversity of seven issued patents in the Erfl on
in Europe. In addition, there are four cened U.S. patent applications. These patentscarthé technoloc
used for the Gramegative product opportunities. We are also exetusivner of two U.S. patent and two L
utility patent applications. One of these U.S.itytiapplications relates to our DegP product opjdties. Wi
are also exclusive owner of three U.S. provisiquaént applications.
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The following are our patent positions as of Decen#i, 2007.

Number Number
Number Co- Exclusively
Exclusively Exclusively Licensed
Licensed Licensed from Number
from with Oregon Exclusively Number
Rockefeller Washington State Licensed Owned by
PATENTS Univ. Univ. University  from UCLA SIGA Patent Expiration Dates
2008, 2013(2), 2014 (6),
2015 (2), 2016 (2), 2017,
U.S. 8 7 1 2 2019, 2020 (2
2009, 2013, 2014 (2),
Australia 5 2 1 2015, 2016, 2019,20z
Canade 2 2010, 201¢
2009, 2010, 2013, 2019,
Europe 3 1 1 2020
Hungary 1 2013
Japar 2 2010, 201z
Mexico 1 2016
New Zealanc 1 2016
China 1 2016
Number Number
Number Co- Exclusively
Exclusively Exclusively Licensed
Licensed Licensed from Number
from with Oregon Exclusively Number
Rockefeller Washington State Licensed Owned by
APPLICATIONS Univ. Univ. University from UCLA SIGA
U.S. application: 1 4 2 6
U.S. provisional: 3
PCT 5
Australia 1 1 3
Canadz 3 2 2 1 3
Europe 1 1 1 1 4
Finland 1
Japar 3 2 1 1 4
Hungary 1

We also rely upon trade secret protectiwrour confidential and proprietary informatiddo assuranc
can be given that other companies will not indepetly develop substantially equivalent proprie
information and techniques or otherwise gain actessir trade secrets or that we can meaningfuthyeet ou

trade secret:



Government Regulation

Regulation by governmental authoritiestie United States and other countries will be gmificani
factor in the production and marketing of any bimphaceutical products that we may develop. Theraan
the extent to which such regulations may applygamil vary depending on the nature of any suchdpots
Virtually all of our potential biopharmaceuticalgoucts will require regulatory approval by govermtad
agencies prior to commercialization. In particulayman therapeutic products are subject to rigofes
clinical and clinical testing and other approvabqgedures by the FDA and similar health authoritieforeigr
countries. Various federal




statutes and regulations also govern or influeheemanufacturing, safety, labeling, storage, redaeping
and marketing of such products. The process ofimibtathese approvals and the subsequent compliaith
appropriate federal and foreign statutes and régukrequires the expenditure of substantial recss.

In order to test clinically, produce amdrket products for diagnostic or therapeutic asepmpany mu
comply with mandatory procedures and safety statsdastablished by the FDA and comparable agena
foreign countries. Before beginning human clinitedting of a potential new drug in the United S{at
company must file an IND and receive clearance fthm FDA. This application is a summary of the pre-
clinical studies that were conducted to charaatettie drug, including toxicity and safety studies well as a
in-depth discussion of the human clinical studies &re being proposed.

The pre-marketing program required foprapal by the FDA of a new drug typically involvastime-
consuming and costly thrg@rase process. In Phase |, trials are conductdd avimall number of healt
patients to determine the early safety profile, gagern of drug distribution and metabolism. Iragh I, trial:
are conducted with small groups of patients afftictvith a target disease in order to determineimpnehry
efficacy, optimal dosages and expanded evidensafety. In Phase lll, large scale, muénter comparati\
trials are conducted with patients afflicted withaaget disease in order to provide enough datathtistica
proof of efficacy and safety required by the FDAl axthers.

The FDA amended its regulations, effectiune 30, 2002, so that certain new drug and ditsi
products used to reduce or prevent the toxicitgt@mical, biological, radiological, or nuclear stanees ma
be approved for use in humans based on evidene#eaztiveness derived only from appropriate anistatlie:
and any additional supporting data.

The FDA closely monitors the progresseath of the three phases of clinical testing ang, rimits
discretion, reevaluate, alter, suspend or termitfaetesting based on the data that have been atziauh t(
that point and its assessment of the risk/benafib to the patient. Estimates of the total timgquieed fol
carrying out such clinical testing vary between taval ten years. Upon completion of such clinicatitg, ¢
company typically submits a New Drug ApplicatiofNPA”) or Product License Application (“PLA"o the
FDA that summarizes the results and observationlseofirug during the clinical testing. Based orréigew o
the NDA or PLA, the FDA will decide whether to appe the drug. This review process can be quitetis;
and approval for the production and marketing aka& pharmaceutical product can require a numbgeaf:
and substantial funding; there can be no assurtuiateny approvals will be granted on a timely aifiat all
A very similar regulatory approval process is iagd in Europe, under the authority of the Europdadicine:
Agency (EMEA), and this pathway will have to be sued independently to obtain regulatory approvakhé
member countries.

Once the product is approved for saleARBgulations govern the production process andketat
activities, and a postarketing testing and surveillance program maydgpiired to monitor continuously
products usage and its effects. Product approvals mayithelrawn if compliance with regulatory standarc
not maintained. Other countries in which any prasluieveloped by us may be marketed could impos®itae
regulatory process.

An alternative regulatory mechanism is also avédladhe Emergency Use Authorization (El
authority recently granted by Congress allows tH2AFCommissioner to strengthen the public he
protections against biological, chemical, radiotadi and nuclear agents that may be used to atte
American people or the U.S. armed forces. Undes tbcent legislation, the FDA Commissioner mayve
medical countermeasures to be used in an emerderaiagnose, treat, or prevent serious or thifieeatenin
diseases or conditions caused by such agents, thbemare no adequate, approved, and availablmatitees
This authority delineates the intent of the 108tn@ress which passed the Project BioShield Act0ff42(S
15) and of President Bush who signed it into lawdaly 21, 2004 (P.L. 10876). The main provisions of tl
law include (1) relaxing procedures for bioterrorieelated procurement, hiring, and awarding of resh
grants; (2) guaranteeing a federal government nidokenew biomedical countermeasures; and (3) péing
emergency use of unapproved countermeasures. PRishield countermeasure procurement is funde
the Department of Homeland Security Appropriatidsed, 2004 (P.L. 108-90), which advanappropriate
$5.593 hillion for FY2004 to FY2013.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical stides are characterized by rapidly evolving tedbg anc
intense competition. Our competitors include mosktthe major pharmaceutical companies, which |
financial, technical and marketing resources sigaiftly greater than ours. Biotechnology and ¢
pharmaceutical competitors include Acambis, AdbillPharmaceuticals, Arrow Therapeutics, Avant Imoaun
therapeutics, Inc., Bavarian Nordic AS, Chimerixc.InBioport, Emergent and BioSolutions. Acade



institutions, governmental agencies and other pudblid private research organizations are also ading
research activities and seeking patent protectimhraay commercialize products on their own or tigtojoint
venture. There is a possibility that our compesitaill succeed in developing products that are neffective
or less costly than any which are being developgdid or which would render our technology and fe
products obsolete and noncompetitive.

Human Resources and Facilities

As of February 29, 2008, we had 38 fufle employees. None of our employees are coveyed
collective bargaining agreement and we consideeayloyee relations to be good.
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Availability of Reports and Other Information

We file annual, quarterly, and currengars, proxy statements, and other documents WwéhSecuritie
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Secariizchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange AcfThe
public may read and copy any materials that weWillh the SEC at the SEE€Public Reference Room at ¢
Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. The pulntiay obtain information on the operation of the R
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-$8B39. Also, the SEC maintains an Internet website
contains reports, proxy and information statemegnsl other information regarding issuers, includiisg tha
file electronically with the SEC. The public cantaib any documents that we file with the SEC
http://www.sec.gov.

In addition, our company website can cenfl on the Internet at www.siga.com. The websitetain:
information about us and our operations. Copiesaah of our filings with the SEC on Form 10-K, Fotfx
KSB, Form 10-Q, Form 10-QSB and FormK8-and all amendments to those reports, can be edean:
downloaded free of charge as soon as reasonaldtiqatle after the reports and amendments arerefecally
filed with or furnished to the SEC. To view the ogs, access www.siga.com, click on “Investor Refe” anc
“SEC Filing”.

The following corporate governance raladecuments are also available on our website:
. Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
. Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter
. Compensation Committee Charter
. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €h
. Procedure for Sending Communications to the Bo&irectors
. Procedures for Security Holder Submission of NotiiiggRecommendations
. 2004 Policy on Confidentiality of Information ane&urities Trading
To review these documents, access www.sigaaaanclick on “Corporate Governance.”

Any of the above documents can also be obtaingatim by any shareholder upon request to the Samy,
SIGA Technologies, Inc., 420 Lexington Avenue, 84i08, New York, New York 10170.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report contains forwalobking statements and other prospective infornmatielating to future
events. These forwaldoking statements and other information are suliggdsks and uncertainties that co
cause our actual results to differ materially froor historical results or currently anticipatedulésincluding
the following:

We have incurred operating losses since our inceptand expect to incur net losses and negative cistv
for the foreseeable future

We incurred net losses of approximatéy6$million, $9.9 million, and $2.3 million, for ¢hyears ende
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectivelyofA3ecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, our accued
deficit was approximately $62.0 million, $56.4 nah, and $46.5 million, respectively. We expecttmtinue
to incur significant operating expenditures. Welwieed to generate significant revenues to achewd
maintain profitability.

We cannot guarantee that we will achisu#ficient revenues for profitability. Even if weo dachieve
profitability, we cannot guarantee that we cana&usor increase profitability on a quarterly or aahbasis ir
the future. If revenues grow slower than we anétsp or if operating expenses exceed our expentatr
cannot be adjusted accordingly, then our businmessjts of operations, financial condition and cistvs will
be materially and adversely affected. Because tmategly might include acquisitions of other busgees
acquisition expenses and any cash used to make dlegsisitions will reduce our available cash.

Our business will suffer if we are unable to raiselditional equity funding.

We continue to be dependent on our ghititraise money in the equity markets. There igynarante:
that we will continue to be successful in raisimgtsfunds. If we are unable to raise additionalitgdunds, we
may be forced to discontinue or cease certain tipegma We currently have sufficient operating capip
finance our operations beyond the next twelve man@ur annual operating needs vary from year to
depending upon the amount of revenue generatedighrgrants, contracts and licenses and the amdt
projects we undertake, as well as the amount afurees we expend, in connection with acquisitioth®fa
which may materially differ from year to year andyradversely affect our business.

Our stock price is, and we expect it to remain, atile, which could limit investorsability to sell stock at i
profit.

The volatile price of our stock makeslifficult for investors to predict the value of thanvestment, tc
sell shares at a profit at any given time, or t@nppurchases and sales in advance. A variety tdriaenay
affect the market price of our common stock. ThHaskide, but are not limited to:

. publicity regarding actual or potential clinicalstdts relating to products under development by
competitors or us

. delay or failure in initiating, completing or anaigg preelinical or clinical trials or the unsatisfact
design or results of these tria

. achievement or rejection of regulatory approval®bycompetitors or u:

. announcements of technological innovations or nemroercial products by our competitors or
. developments concerning proprietary rights, ineigdbatents

. developments concerning our collaboratic

. regulatory developments in the United States aneida countries

. economic or other crises and other external fac

. perioc-to-period fluctuations in our revenues and other tssafloperations; an
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. changes in financial estimates by securities atal

Additionally, because there is not a higtume of trading in our stock, any informatioroab SIGA ir
the media may result in significant volatility imrostock price.

We will not be able to control many oé#le factors, and we believe that periogi¢oiod comparisons
our financial results will not necessarily be iratige of our future performance.

In addition, the stock market in geneeadd the market for biotechnology companies inigalgr, ha
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuatidvag may have been unrelated or disproportionatehd
operating performance of individual companies. Eheoad market and industry factors may serioualyr
the market price of our common stock, regardlessuofoperating performance.

We are in various stages of product development #mete can be no assurance of successful
commercialization.

In general, our research and developrpmgrams are at an early stage of development.bi@roFDA
approval for our biological warfare defense produate will be required to perform at least one a
efficacy model and provide animal and human safietip. Our other products will be subject to therapa
guidelines under FDA regulatory requirements whichude a number of phases of testing in humans.

The FDA has not approved any of our bapiaceutical product candidates. Any drug candg
developed by us will require significant additiomakearch and development efforts, including extengre-
clinical and clinical testing and regulatory appab\prior to commercial sale. We cannot be sureaproac
to drug discovery will be effective or will result the development of any drug. We cannot preditt
certainty whether any drugs resulting from our agslke and development efforts will be commerciaihgitable
within the next several years, or if they will beadable at all.

Even if we receive initially positive poinical or clinical results, such results do no¢an that simile
results will be obtained in the later stages ofgdievelopment, such as additional plieical testing or hume
clinical trials. All of our potential drug candidegt are prone to the risks of failure inherent iarpraceutic:
product development, including the possibility thahe of our drug candidates will or can:

. be safe, non-toxic and effective;

. otherwise meet applicable regulatory standards;

. receive the necessary regulatory approvals;

. develop into commercially viable drugs;

. be manufactured or produced economically and angelscale;
. be successfully marketed:;

. be reimbursed by government and private insured; a

. achieve customer acceptance.

In addition, third parties may preclude filom marketing our drugs through enforcement tafir
proprietary rights that we are not aware of, ordtparties may succeed in marketing equivalentupegol
drug products. Our failure to develop safe, comiaéycviable drugs would have a material adverdeatfor
our business, financial condition and results arafions.
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Most of our immediately foreseeable future revenwae contingent upon grants and contracts from t
United States government and collaborative and fise agreements and we may not achieve sufficient
revenues from these agreements to attain profitapil

Until and unless we successfully achiesenmercial approval for any of our products, ouiligbto
generate revenues will largely depend on our gbitit enter into additional research grants, coltabee
agreements, strategic alliances, contracts anddecagreements with third parties or maintain tireement
we currently have in place. Substantially all of cevenues for the years ended December 31, 2Q0B, an:
2005, respectively, were derived from grants, @i and license agreements. Our current revenaeriigec
from contract work being performed for the NIH untl#o major grants and a contract which are scheztltc
expire in September 2009 and contracts with the BiSForce which expire in January and April 2008es!
agreements are for specific work to be performedeurthe agreements and could only be cancele
the counter-party for noperformance. We may not earn significant milestpagments under our existi
collaborative agreements until our collaboratorgehadvanced products into clinical testing, whicaynmo
occur for many years, if at all.

We have material agreements with the followingatmdirators:

. National Institutes of Health. In September 200i& NIH awarded us a t-year, $600,000 gra
supporting the development of ST-246 treatmentwdlpox vaccinerelated adverse events. In ¢
2007, the NIH awarded us a twear grant for a total of $530,000 to support dugpsprogram. |
October 2006 we received ayBar, $16.5 million contract from the NIH to advanthe
development of ST-246. In September 2006, we recea/$6.0 million, 3rear grant from the NI
to develop antiviral drugs for the Lassa fever sirln August 2006, the NIH awarded us se2
grant for $4.8 million to continue the developmentST-246. In 2004, we have received gri
totaling approximately $11.1 million which expired2006. SIGA receives cash payments fron
NIH on a monthly or ser-monthly basis, as the work is performed and thatedl revenue
recognized. SIGAS current NIH contract and grants do not includiestone payments. For 1
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 we recagrdzenues of $4.8 million and $3.9 milli
respectively, from these grants and contracts forkwit had performed. The agreements ca
cancelled for non-performance and if cancelled Gbenpany willnot receive additional funds un
the agreement:

. United States Air Force. In November 2006, we nggebia $1.4 million, one year contract with
Air Force Medical Service for the development ofietermeasures against Dengue viruses
other water-related viral agents. In November 2@@6also received a ongar, $900,000 contre
to aid the USAF Special Operations Command (USAFB@@s development of specific antiral
agents. For the years ended December 31, 2007 G0®lEe recognized revenues of $1.9 mil
and $247,000, respectively, from these contrad@ASeceives cash payments from the USAF
monthly basis, as the work is performed and thatedl revenue is recognized. SIGACurren
contracts with the USAF do not include milestongrpants. The agreements can be cancelle
nonperformance and if cancelled, the Company will meteive additional funds under
agreements

. TransTech Pharma, Inc. Under our collaborative emgent with TransTech Pharma, a related
TransTech Pharma is collaborating with us on tlsealiery, optimization and development of |
compounds to certain therapeutic agents. We anasTexh Pharma have agreed to share the
of development and revenues generated from licgnsimd profits from any commercializ
products sales. The agreement will be in effecil teiminated by the parties or upon cessatic
research or sales of all products developed uridelmgreement. SIGA does not expect recei
disbursement of funds under the agreement withslirach Pharma for the next three to five ye

The biopharmaceutical market in which we competedanill compete is highly competitive.

The biopharmaceutical industry is chaazed by rapid and significant technological cran@u
success will depend on our ability to develop applyour technologies in the design and developroéioul
product
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candidates and to establish and maintain a maokedur product candidates. There also are many aaies,
both public and private, including major pharmagmitand chemical companies, specialized biotedgy
firms, universities and other research instituti@mgaged in developing pharmaceutical and biotdolg
products. Many of these companies have substantiaflater financial, technical, research and derabmnt
resources, and human resources than us. Competityslevelop products or other technologies thanaore
effective than any that are being developed byrumay obtain FDA approval for products more rapitign
us. If we commence commercial sales of productsstillenust compete in the manufacturing and mainigetf
such products, areas in which we have no experiedemy of these companies also have manufact
facilities and established marketing capabilitiéattwould enable such companies to market comp
products through existing channels of distributidmvo companies with similar profiles are VaxGeng.)
which is developing vaccines against anthrax, Jyoaliand HIV/AIDS; and Avant Immunotherapeutics,.)i
which has vaccine programs for agents of biologicatfare.

Because we must obtain regulatory clearance to tesd market our products in the United States, vannot
predict whether or when we will be permitted to cm@rcialize our products

A pharmaceutical product cannot generbflymarketed in the U.S. until it has completed negs pre-
clinical testing and clinical trials and an extemsiregulatory clearance process implemented byFDA.
Pharmaceutical products typically take many yearssatisfy regulatory requirements and require
expenditure of substantial resources dependinghentytpe, complexity and novelty of the product aix
intended use.

Before commencing clinical trials in hursamve must submit and receive clearance from thA B
means of an IND application. Institutional revieweabds and the FDA oversee clinical trials and gtiels:

. must be conducted in conformance with the FDA ragjhs;

. must meet requirements for institutional reviewroloaversight;

. must meet requirements for informed consent;

. must meet requirements for good clinical and mastufang practices;
. are subject to continuing FDA oversight;

. may require large humbers of test subjects; and

. may be suspended by us or the FDA at any timeiff elieved that the subjects participatin
these trials are being exposed to unacceptabléhhigsits or if the FDA finds deficiencies in any
the Compan’s IND applications or the conduct of these tri

Before receiving FDA clearance to markepraduct in the absence of a medical or public the
emergency, we must demonstrate that the produgafes and effective on the patient population thait lve
treated. Data we obtain from preclinical and chiactivities are susceptible to varying interpiietss thal
could delay, limit or prevent regulatory clearanokdditionally, we have limited experience in cowting and
managing the clinical trials and manufacturing psses necessary to obtain regulatory clearance.

If full regulatory clearance of a prodigtgranted, this clearance will be limited onlythmse states ar
conditions for which the product is demonstrateguigh clinical trials to be safe and efficaciouse \dAnno
ensure that any compound developed by us, alonétoiothers, will prove to be safe and efficaciduglinical
trials and will meet all of the applicable regulgtoequirements needed to receive full marketimg@nce.

If our technologies or those of our collaboratorsealleged or found to infringe the patents or pnogtary
rights of others, we may be sued or have to licetisese rights from others on unfavorable terms.

Our commercial success will depend sigaifitly on our ability to operate without infringirtige patent
and proprietary rights of third parties. Our tedmg@es, along with our licensors’ and our collatiors’
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technologies, may infringe the patents or propnetaghts of others. If there is an adverse outcamigigation
or an interference to determine priority or otheogeeding in a court or patent office, then we,oar
collaborators and licensors, could be subjectesigoificant liabilities, required to license dispdtrights fron
or to other parties and/or required to cease usiteghnology necessary to carry out research, dewent an
commercialization. At present we are unaware of anypotential infringement claims against our pt
portfolio.

The costs to establish the validity ofgpés, to defend against patent infringement claifmgthers and
assert infringement claims against others can hgeresive and time consuming, even if the outcon
favorable. An outcome of any patent prosecutiolitigation that is unfavorable to us or one of tinensors ¢
collaborators may have a material adverse effeatsor\WWe could incur substantial costs if we arauireq tc
defend ourselves in patent suits brought by thadigs, if we participate in patent suits brougbaiast o
initiated by our licensors or collaborators or i€ wnitiate such suits. We may not have sufficiamds o
resources in the event of litigation. Additionallye may not prevail in any such action.

Any conflicts resulting from thirgarty patent applications and patents could sicguifily reduce tr
coverage of the patents owned, optioned by or éiedrio us or our collaborators and limit our apitit that o
our collaborators to obtain meaningful patent ptite. If patents are issued to third parties tbamtair
competitive or conflicting claims, we, our licensoor our collaborators may be legally prohibitedni
researching, developing or commercializing of pt&trproducts or be required to obtain licenseghiest
patents or to develop or obtain alternative teabgyl We, our licensors and/or our collaborators ioayegally
prohibited from using patented technology, mayb®able to obtain any license to the patents astthtdogie
of third parties on acceptable terms, if at allir@y not be able to obtain or develop alternagaotmhologies.

PharmAthene, Inc., has filed a lawsuit againstGbenpany seeking among other things, a license to ST
246. While we believe that we have meritorious dsés to the claim, there can be no assurance comngehe
outcome. If PharmAthene were successful in obtgigidicense through this litigation, the licenseyrba or
terms that are not favorable to the Company.

In addition, like many biopharmaceuticampanies, we may from time to time hire scientifarsonne
formerly employed by other companies involved ie @n more areas similar to the activities conduttedis
We and/or these individuals may be subject to atiegs of trade secret misappropriation or otherilar
claims as a result of their prior affiliations.

Our ability to compete may decrease if we do noé@uahtely protect our intellectual property rights.

Our commercial success will depend irt parour and our collaboratorability to obtain and mainta
patent protection for our proprietary technologidsyg targets and potential products and to effely
preserve our trade secrets. Because of the suilastmgth of time and expense associated withgimi
potential products through the development andlatgry clearance processes to reach the marketptla€
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogaon obtaining patent and trade secret proteciibe
patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnolagmpanies can be highly uncertain and involve en
legal and factual questions. No consistent poliegarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotedbgy
patents has emerged to date. Accordingly, we capregtict the type and breadth of claims allowedhiest
patents.

We have licensed the rights to eightesksU.S. patents and three issued European paldrdse paten
have varying lives and they are related to therteldygy licensed from Rockefeller University for tB&rep an
Gramypositive products. We have one additional patepliegtion in the U.S. and one application in Eul
relating to this technology. We are joint ownerhwiWashington University of seven issued patenthénU.S
and one in Europe. In addition, there are fouamed U.S. patent applications. These patents aré¢hé
technology used for the Granegative product opportunities. We are also exetusiwner of one U.S. pate
and three U.S. patent applications. One of thes®. patent applications relates to our DegP pr¢
opportunities.

We included a summary of our patent pmsét as of December 31, 2007 in Part I, ltem 1hi§
document.

We also rely on copyright protectiondgasecrets, knowew, continuing technological innovation ¢
licensing opportunities. In an effort to maintainet confidentiality and ownership of trade secrets!
proprietary information, we require our employeensultants and some collaborators to ex¢
confidentiality and invention assignment agreememen commencement of a relationship with us. T
agreements may not provide meaningful protectiorofo trade secrets, confidential information oreintion:
in the event of unauthorized use or disclosureuchsnformation, and adequate remedies may not exibe



event of such unauthorized use or disclosure.
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We may have difficulty managing our growth.

We might experience growth in the numbg&mour employees and the scope of our operatiohgs
potential future growth could place a significaitasy on our management and operations. Our abii
manage this potential growth will depend upon daility to broaden our management team and ourtghi
attract, hire and retain skilled employees. Ourcess will also depend on the ability of our offeemnd ke
employees to continue to implement and improve apgrational and other systems and to hire, trau
manage our employees.

Our activities involve hazardous materials and msybject us to environmental regulatory liabilities.

Our biopharmaceutical research and deweémt involves the controlled use of hazardous
radioactive materials and biological waste. We subject to federal, state and local laws and reigulg
governing the use, manufacture, storage, handimydisposal of these materials and certain wasiduots
Although we believe that our safety procedurestfandling and disposing of these materials complth
legally prescribed standards, the risk of accideotamtamination or injury from these materials catnie
completely eliminated. In the event of an accider,could be held liable for damages, and thislitglzould
exceed our resources. The research and develomtwities of our company do not produce any unl
hazardous products. We do use small amounts obaative isotopes commonly used in pharmacet
research, which are stored, used and disposed dafc@ordance with Nuclear Regulatory Commis:
regulations. We maintain liability insurance in thmount of approximately $3,000,000, and we belitg
should be sufficient to cover any contingent losses

We believe that we are in compliance linnaaterial respects with applicable environmergéals ani
regulations and currently do not expect to makeenwdt additional capital expenditures for enviromtad
control facilities in the near term. However, weynreave to incur significant costs to comply withrreunt o
future environmental laws and regulations.

Our potential products may not be acceptable in tharket or eligible for third-party reimbursement
resulting in a negative impact on our future finamal results.

Any products successfully developed byaunsour collaborative partners may not achieve mt
acceptance. The antibiotic products which we atengiting to develop will compete with a number aliw
established traditional antibiotic drugs manufaetuand marketed by major pharmaceutical compaiiiec
degree of market acceptance of any of our produmititslepend on a number of factors, including:

. the establishment and demonstration in the medmamunity of the clinical efficacy and safety
such products

. the potential advantage of such products overiagisteatment methods, and
. reimbursement policies of government and thirdyppéyors.

Physicians, patients or the medical comityun general may not accept or utilize any praduhat w
or our collaborative partners may develop. Ourighib receive revenues and income with respedrtms, i
any, developed through the use of our technolodlydepend, in part, upon the extent to which reinsemer
for the cost of such drugs will be available framrd-party payors, such as government health admirist
authorities, private health care insurers, healtintenance organizations, pharmacy benefits manag
companies and other organizations. Tipedty payors are increasingly disputing the pricharged fc
pharmaceutical products. If thifkrty reimbursement was not available or suffictenallow profitable pric
levels to be maintained for drugs developed by usuv collaborative partners, it could adverselfeeif ou
business.

If our products harm people, we may experience puotlliability claims that may not be covered
insurance.

We face an inherent business risk of sypoto potential product liability claims in theeat that druc
we develop are alleged to cause adverse effegiaibents. Such risk exists for products being tegichuma
clinical trials, as well as products that receiggulatory approval for commercial sale. We may geabtain
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product liability insurance with respect to druge and/or our collaborative partners develop. Howewe
may not be able to obtain such insurance. Evemdh snsurance is obtainable, it may not be avadlatil
reasonable cost or in a sufficient amount to ptais@gainst liability.

We may be required to perform additional clinicalals or change the labeling of our products if we
others identify side effects after our products are the market, which could harm sales of the affed
products.

If we or others identify side effectseafiany of our products are on the market, or if af@acturing
problems occur:

. regulatory approval may be withdrawn;

. reformulation of our products, additional clinidabls, changes in labeling of our products ma
required;

. changes to or re-approvals of our manufacturingities may be required;
. sales of the affected products may drop signifigant
. our reputation in the marketplace may suffer; and

. lawsuits, including class action suits, may be bhawagainst us.

Any of the above occurrences could harrprevent sales of the affected products or couttlease th
costs and expenses of commercializing and mark#tege products.

The manufacture of biotechnology products can béirme-consuming and complex process which may delay
or prevent commercialization of our products, or pnarevent our ability to produce an adequate volufoe
the successful commercialization of our products.

Our management believes that we havalbil#y to acquire or produce quantities of produstifficient
to support our present needs for research androjggbed needs for our initial clinical developmenbgrams
The manufacturer of all of our products will be gab to current Good Manufacturing Practices (Gl
requirements prescribed by the FDA or other statglarescribed by the appropriate regulatory agémdie
country of use. There can be no assurance that Wéavable to manufacture products, or have prtg
manufactured for us, in a timely fashion at acdelptauality and prices, that we or third party mfacturers
can comply with GMP, or that we or third party méuturers will be able to manufacture an adequapply
of product.

Healthcare reform and controls on healthcare spendimay limit the price we charge for any productad
the amounts thereof that we can sell.

The U.S. federal government and privaseiiers have considered ways to change, and havngeti, the
manner in which healthcare services are providatienU.S. Potential approaches and changes intrgears
include controls on healthcare spending and thetiore of large purchasing groups. In the future thS.
government may institute further controls and Isvwih Medicare and Medicaid spending. These congndi
limits might affect the payments we could colleani sales of any products. Uncertainties regardiirigre
healthcare reform and private market practicesccadiversely affect our ability to sell any produgtsfitably
in the U.S. At present, we do not foresee any chsuiig FDA regulatory policies that would adversaffect
our development programs.

The future issuance of preferred stock may adveysaffect the rights of the holders of our commorosk.

Our certificate of incorporation allowsiroBoard of Directors to issue up to 10,000,000reshaof
preferred stock and to fix the voting powers, deatipns, preferences, rights and qualificationsjtitions oi
restrictions of
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these shares without any further vote or actiothizystockholders. The rights of the holders of camrstocl
will be subject to, and could be adversely affedigdthe rights of the holders of any preferrectktthat we
may issue in the future. The issuance of prefestedk, while providing desirable flexibility in coection witt
possible acquisitions and other corporate purpasmgd have the effect of making it more diffictdr a thirc
party to acquire a majority of our outstanding mgtistock, thereby delaying, deferring or preventinchang
in control.

Concentration of ownership of our capital stock cldudelay or prevent change of control.

Our directors, executive officers andhpipal stockholders beneficially own a significarcentage «
our common stock. They also have, through the éeiar conversion of certain securities, the righacquir
additional common stock. As a result, these stolcldre, if acting together, have the ability to sigantly
influence the outcome of corporate actions reqgishareholder approval. Additionally, this concatitm o
ownership may have the effect of delaying or préwgna change in control of SIGA. At December 3202
Directors, Officers and principal stockholders Hanally owned approximately 36.1% of our stock.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in New YGitk and our research and development facilitieslacated i
Corvallis, Oregon. In New York, we lease approxietat3,000 square feet under a lease that expir
February 28, 2010. In Corvallis, we lease approxityal8,100 square feet under an amended leaseragn
signed in January 2007, which expires in DecembBéd. 20ur facility in Oregon has been improved teetribe
special requirements necessary for the operatiasupfesearch and development activities. In theiop of
the management, these facilities are sufficiemiéet the current and anticipated future requiremmehSIGA.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On December 20, 2006, PharmAthene, IfiRhgrmAthene”)filed an action against us in the Cour
Chancery in the State of Delaware, captioRedrmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies,.|IM€.A. No. 2627N.
In its Complaint, PharmAthene asks the Court tcepitie Company to enter into a license agreemetfn
PharmAthene with respect to SIGX6, as well as issue a declaration that we angeablto execute suck
license agreement, and award damages resultingdumraupposed breach of that obligation. PharmAdhadsc
alleges that we breached an obligation to negotatdh a license agreement in good faith, as weHeak
damages for promissory estoppel and unjust enriohimgsed on supposed information, capital and tassi
that PharmAthene allegedly provided to us during miegotiation process. On January 9, 2007, we #
motion to dismiss the Complaint in its entirety failure to state a claim upon which relief cangoanted. Th
Company moved to stay discovery on January 26, 20@/7this motion was granted on March 8, 2007
January 16, 2008, the Court of Chancery deniednmation to dismiss and lifted the stay of discoveBpth
parties to the litigation have outstanding docunteqtiests and discovery is proceeding. The Comfikealyits
answer to the Complaint on January 31, 2008. SIaAto defend itself vigorously.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holder:
None.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stodholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on #edél Capital Market since September 9, 1997 auld:
under the symbol “SIGA.Prior to that time there was no public market far common stock. The followit
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, thghtand low sales prices for the common stock, jsrted on th

Nasdaq Capital Marke

Price Range
2006 High
First Quartel $1.64
Second Quarte $1.81
Third Quartel $2.3:
Fourth Quarte $5.5C
2007 High
First Quartel $6.04
Second Quarte $5.94
Third Quartel $4.7C
Fourth Quarte $4.5C

Low
$0.87
$1.1¢€
$1.0C
$1.4C

Low
$3.3¢
$3.21
$2.52
$2.9¢

The following line graph compares the alative total stockholder return through Decemb&r 2007
assuming reinvestment of dividends, by an investos invested $100 on December 31, 2001 in each) tife
Common Stock, (ii) the NASDAQ National Market-USxda(iii) the NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index.

F300.00 4
$250.00 /"“* ~—_
E $200.00 ——
3 $1o000 7ﬁ<‘\——*‘7
$100.00 { w
$50.00
$" T T T T L '1
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
As of The Year Ended
—— ZIGA Techndogies, ke, —a— NASDAG Composite liex NASDAG Biotech Compost e lndex
Value of Initial Investmen 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
SIGA Technologies, Inc $100.0( $160.1+ $116.0¢ $ 66.4: $262.2¢ $215.3¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde $100.0( $150.0: $162.8¢ $165.1: $180.8¢ $198.6(
NASDAQ Biotech Composi
Index $100.0( $145.7¢ $154.6¢ $159.0¢ $160.6¢ $168.0¢
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As of March 4, 2008, the closing bid price of oormamon stock was $2.12 per share. There were 6 2ot
record as of March 4, 2008. We believe that the bemof beneficial owners of our common stoc
substantially greater than the number of recordldrsl, because a large portion of common stock I ih
broker “street names.”

We have paid no dividends on our common stock aedda not expect to pay cash dividends ir
foreseeable future. We are not under any restrici® to our present or future ability to pay divide. W«
currently intend to retain any future earningsitamnce the growth and development of our business.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands, except shaaed per share data)

The following table sets forth selected financiglormation derived from our audited consolidatethficia
statements as of and for the years ended Decerth2037, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Patent
Selling, Research anc preparation In-process Impairment of

The year endec general & research anc intangible
December 31, Revenue administrative development fees development assets
2007 $6,69¢ $ 3,704 $9,94: $ 51¢ $ — $ —
2006 $7,25¢ $ 4,62¢ $9,14¢ $ 29t $ — $ —
2005 $8,471 $ 2,481 $8,29¢ $ 23z $ — $ —
2004 $1,83¢ $ 4,04 $4,16¢ $ 39: $56¢ $2,11¢
2003 $ 732 $ 2,64¢ $2,94: $ 30C $ — $ 137

Weighted averag

Net loss per shares
The year endec share: basic & outstanding:
December 31, Operating loss  Net loss diluted basic and diluted
2007 $(7,467) $(5,639) $ (0.19) 33,330,81
2006 $(6,810) $(9,899) $ (0.35) 28,200,13
2005 $(2,537) $(2,28¢) $ (0.09) 24,824,82.
2004 $(9,44%) $(9,379) $ (0.40 23,724,02
2003 $(5,29¢) $(5,277) $ (0.39 15,717,13
Total Net cash used i
As of and for the Cash & cast Longterm stockholders’
year ended operating
December 31, Total asset:  equivalents  obligations equity activities
2007 $ 10,58¢ $ 6,83 $ 3,24 $ 5,22¢ $(5,44¢)
2006 $ 14,02¢ $ 10,64( $ 4,69¢ $ 7,282 $(4,43¢)
2005 $ 6,13 $ 1,77 $ 64z $ 3,231 $(1,397)
2004 $ 6,111 $ 2,021 $ — $ 4,55¢ $(4,890
2003 $ 6,10C $ 1,441 $ — $ 5,551 $(5,33%)
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion should be readtdnjunction with our consolidated financial statents anc
notes to those statements and other financial mé&iion appearing elsewhere in this Annual Repant
addition to historical information, the followingistussion and other parts of this Annual Reporttaior
forward-looking information that involves risks and uneénties.

Overview

Since our inception in December 1995, Slas pursued the research and development of
products for the prevention and treatment of sarimfectious diseases, including products for usehie
defense against biological warfare agents suchre|Sox and Arenaviruses. In September 2007, weived
a two-year grant from the NIH for a total of apgmately $600,000, to support the development of28%
treatment of smallpox vaccine-related adverse svddring the third quarter of 2006 we were awardest
year, $16.5 million contract from the NIH and ardi@dnal z-year, $4.8 million Phase Il continuation gr.
from the NIH. Both awards support the continuingaelepment of our smallpox drug candidate, &#6. Our
efforts to develop SP46 were also supported by previous grants froenNH totaling $5.8 million, a $1.
million agreement with Saint Louis University, aa&1.6 million contract with the U.S. Army. Ourtiative to
advance SIGA’s Arenavirus programs is supported Byear, $6.0 million grant from the NIH, received
September 2006 and previous grants from the Nl&itaf $6.3 million.

Our anti-viral programs are designed itevpnt or limit the replication of the viral pathteag Our anti-
infectives programs are aimed at the increasinglyoss problem of drug resistance. These program
designed to block the ability of bacteria to attswihuman tissue, the first step in the infectioocess.

We do not have commercial products, aedcannot predict with certainty when our producit e
able to be sold in substantial quantities. We wikd additional funds to complete the developmériuo
products. Our plans with regard to these matteckide continued development of our products as as
seeking additional research support funds and imhmrrangements. Although we continue to purdesd
plans, there is no assurance that we will be sgfuleim obtaining future financing on terms accépgato us
Management believes that its existing cash balacoesbined with cash flows primarily from continui
government grants and contracts, anticipated nevergment grants and contracts or reduction of e
operating expenses will be sufficient to suppoiEAis operations beyond the next twelve months, and
sufficient cash flows will be available to meet Bempany’s business objectives during that period.

Our technical operations are based inresearch facility in Corvallis, Oregon. We congnio seek ti
fund a major portion of our ongoing antiviral, dmditic and vaccine programs through a combinati®
government grants, contracts and strategic all&na#hile we have had success in obtaining stragiances
contracts and grants, there is no assurance thatilveontinue to be successful in obtaining furicem these
sources. Until additional relationships are essdigld, we expect to continue to incur significarseegch an
development costs and costs associated with thesfaxztoring of product for use in clinical trials caipre-
clinical testing. It is expected that general ambinmmistrative costs, including patent and regulatoosts,
necessary to support clinical trials and reseamt development will continue to be significant ine
future. We expect to incur operating losses forftiieseeable future and there can be no assuraatce/¢ will
ever achieve profitable operations.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The methods, estimates and judgments seeimu applying our accounting policies have a Sicgmt
impact on the results we report in our consoliddiedncial statements, which we discuss under #wsdimg
“Results of Operations” following this section ofiroManagemen$ Discussion and Analysis. Some of
accounting policies
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require us to make difficult and subjective judgmsenften as a result of the need to make estinudtemtter.
that are inherently uncertain. Our most criticad@mting estimates include the assessment of reaioNiey of
goodwill, which could impact goodwill impairmentthe assessment of recoverability of Idigd asset:
which primarily impacts operating income if impagnt exists. Below, we discuss these policies fuyths
well as the estimates and judgments involved. Gtkgraccounting policies, including revenue rectignj are
less subjective and involve a far lower degreestiheates and judgment.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a brief discussion oétmore significant accounting policies and methaskd by us i
the preparation of our consolidated financial stetets. Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated reiiad
Statements includes a summary of all of the sigaift accounting policies.

Share-based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stbased compensation programs under the provisioSgatément ¢
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised4200Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)Which
requires the measurement and recognition of congpiensexpense for all shabased payment awards mad
employees and directors including employee stockonp and employee stock purchases related t
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“employee stock psedi)based on estimated fair values. SFAS 12
requires companies to estimate the fair value afeshased awards on the grant date using an optiomg
model. The value of the portion of the award teatltimately expected to vest is recorded as expensr th
requisite periods in the Company’s consolidatetkstant of operations.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash edents, accounts payable and accrued expensesxapate:
fair value due to the relatively short maturitytbése instruments. Common stock rights and warsahish are
classified as assets or liabilities under the wiovis of EITF 00t9 are recorded at their fair market value ¢
each reporting period. The Company applies the lB&tholes pricing model to calculate the fair valof
common stock rights and warrants using the corddatgrm of the instruments and expected volatitigt i<
calculated as a combination of the Compartyistorical volatility and the volatility of a gup of comparab
companies.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from acohtresearch and development and research pr
payments in accordance with SEC Staff Accountingein No. 104,Revenue Recognitio;SAB 104"). In
accordance with SAB 104, revenue is recognized wieauasive evidence of an arrangement existyjely
has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinablégaility is reasonably assured, contractualigdtions hav
been satisfied and title and risk of loss have hiesrsferred to the customer. The Company recognizenu
from non-refundable ufront payments, not tied to achieving a specifidfigmenance milestone, over the per
which the Company is obligated to perform servioesbased on the percentage of costs incurred te,
estimated costs to complete and total expectedraintevenue. Payments for development activitie
recognized as revenue is earned, over the periaffoft. Substantive aisk milestone payments, which
based on achieving a specific performance milestareerecognized as revenue when the milestonghis\ae(
and the related payment is due, providing thereifuture service obligation associated with thdestone. I
situations where the Company receives paymentvaraze of the performance of services, such amaane
deferred and recognized as revenue as the relateidess are performed.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchaseeppaid for an acquisition exceeds the estimaa@dvilue o
the net identified tangible and intangible assetpiaed.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impeant annually, in the fourth quarter of each y&aaddition
the Company would test goodwill for recoverabiligtween annual evaluations whenever events or elsar
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounty m@ be recoverable. Examples of such events
include a significant adverse change in legal matiequidity or in the business climate, an adeeastion o
assessment by a regulator or government organizdties of key personnel, or new circumstanceswioatd
cause an expectation that it is more likely thahthat we would sell or otherwise dispose of a répg unit,
Goodwill impairment is
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determined using a twstep approach in accordance with Statement of EiabAccounting Standards No. 1
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142The impairment review process compares the faure
of the reporting unit in which goodwill resides its carrying value. In 2007, the Company operatede
business and one reporting unit. Therefore, thelgdbimpairment analysis was performed on the gadithe
Company as a whole using the market capitalizasfdhe Company as an estimate of its fair valughénpast
our market capitalization has been significantlyeitess of the Comparsycarrying value. It is reasonal
likely that the future market capitalization of iGmay exceed or fall short of our current mai
capitalization, in which case a different amoumtgdotential impairment would result. The use of dscountec
expected future cash flows to evaluate the faineaf the Company as a whole is reasonably likelgroduce
different results than the Company’s market caigsbn.

Intangible Assets

Acquisitionrelated intangibles include acquired technologgt@mer contracts, grants and covenants
to compete, and are amortized on a straight lisésh@ver periods ranging from 2-4 years.

In accordance with Statement of Finanddcounting Standards No. 144A¢counting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFA84"), the Company performs a review of its identif
intangible assets to determine if facts and cirdanses exist which indicate that the useful lifsherter thai
originally estimated or that the carrying amount afsets may not be recoverable. If such facts
circumstances do exist, the Company assessescitnverability of identified intangible assets by quaning the
projected undiscounted net cash flows associatddtive related asset or group of assets over tegiaining
lives against their respective carrying amountspdinment, if any, is based on the excess of theyicar
amount over the fair value of those assets. Oimasts of projected cash flows are dependent ory f@tors,
including general economic trends, technologicalettgpoments and projected future contracts and gowent
grants. It is reasonably likely that future castwié associated with our intangible assets may exoedall
short of our current projections, in which casdfedent amount for impairment would result. If cactual casl
flows exceed our estimates of future cash flowy, iampairment charge would be greater than needeolrl
actual cash flows are less than our estimated flagls, we may need to recognize additional impaih
charges in future periods, which would be limitedie carrying amount of the intangible assets.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2007, the Companypéeld FASB Interpretation No. 48ccounting for Uncertaint
in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Stateri®at(“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a comprehens
model for the manner in which a company should gatze, measure, present and disclose in its fia&
statements all material uncertain tax positions tiea Company has taken or expects to take on getasn.

As of the date of adoption, there weretaro positions for which it is reasonably possitiiat the tota
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will signifita increase or decrease within twelve months ftbendate
of adoption of FIN 48 or from December 31, 2007.cA®ecember 31, 2007, the only tax jurisdictiormtoich
the Company is subject is the United States. Opelyears relate to years in which unused net opgradsse:
were generated. Thus, upon adoption of FIN 48,Gbmpanys open tax years extend back to 1995. In
event that the Company concludes that it is subjednterest and/or penalties arising from uncartzix
positions, the Company will present interest andaftees as a component of income taxes. No amoafr
interest or penalties were recognized in the Comjga@onsolidated Statements of Operations or Coratelil
Balance Sheets upon adoption of FIN 48 or as offanthe year ended December 31, 2007.

In June 2007, the FASB issued EITF IsBde3 “Accounting for Advance Payments for Goods
Services to Be Used in Future Research and Develop#ctivities” (EITF 073). The scope of this Issue
limited to nonrefundable advance payments for goadd services related to research and develog
activities. The Issue addresses whether such adudgryments should be expensed as incurred oatapd.
SIGA is required to adopt EITF (& effective January 1, 2008. As of December 31,7260 Company dos
not have any arrangements that would be subjebgtscope of EITF 07-3.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMGR, “Business Combinations3FAS 141R require
the acquiring entity in a business combination @oord all assets acquired and liabilities assunettheir
respective
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acquisitiondate fair values, changes the recognition of assegsired and liabilities assumed arising fi
contingencies, changes the recognition and measuterof contingent consideration, and requires
expensing of acquisitiorelated costs as incurred. SFAS 141R also reqaddgional disclosure of informatic
surrounding a business combination, such that udehe entitys financial statements can fully understand
nature and financial impact of the business contlmina SFAS 141R applies prospectively to busir
combinations for which the acquisition date is anatier the beginning of the first annual reportiperiod
beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The piongsof SFAS 141R will only impact us if we are fyao a
business combination after the pronouncement hexs &gopted.

In December 2007, the FASB also issuedSSMNo. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidat
Financial Statement- an amendment of Accounting Research BulletinS410SFAS 160 requires an entity
classify noncontrolling interests in subsidiariessaaseparate component of equity. Additionallyngeection:
between an entity and noncontrolling interestsraggiired to be treated as equity transactions. Wewarently
evaluating the impact of this statement on ourrfaial statements. SFAS 160 is effective for fisgahrs
beginning after December 15, 2008. As of Decemler2B07, we believe th&FAS 160 will not affect oL
consolidated financial position, results of opanasi and cash flows.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain consolidas¢atements of income data as a percentage oévetue for
the periods indicated:

2007 2006 2005
Revenue 10C% 10C% 100C%
Selling, general and administrati 55% 64% 29%
Research and developm 14&% 12€% 98%
Patent preparation fe: 8% 4% 3%
In-process research and developn 0% 0% 0%
Impairment of intangible asse 0% 0% 0%
Operating loss 111% 94% 30%

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Revenues from research and developmanttamis and grants for the year ended DecembeP(®17
were $6.70 million, a decline of $560,000 or 7.78nf the $7.26 million in revenues recorded for yiear
ended December 31, 2006. During the year endedriteme31, 2007, we recognized revenues of $4.52om
from NIH grants and an agreement with the NIH supipg our lead programs. Revenues from NIH graaut
agreement with the NIH and an agreement with Saonis University, supporting these lead programsndy
the year ended December 31, 2006 were $3.7 milRavenues recorded from our programs with the U
and the US Army were $1.9 million and $2.7 millifor the years ended December 31, 2007 and :
respectively. The decline of $800,000 in revenuasegated from our agreements with the USAF andJ&
Army is mainly due to revenues generated in 2006fa oneyear agreement with the US Army, signec
September 2005 and completed in 2006. The dedlimevenues recorded for the year ended Decemb
2007 was also due to the completion of a one y&a00,000, Phase | grant from the NIH to support
development of our Bacterial Commensal Vector tetdgy for the delivery of smallpox vaccine, whicke
completed in February 28, 2007. Revenues recomledrninection with this grant were $82,000 and $2Q00,
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 200pectgely. Revenues for the year ended Decembe
2006 also included $412,000 related to a fpesr agreement with the US Army, supporting ouejsfsrogram
which was completed in December 31, 2006. In JOI972 we were awarded a twear grant for a total ¢
$530,000 to support of Strep program. For the pealed December 31, 2007 we recorded $67,000 fra
grant.

Revenues for the years ended Decembe@®16 and 2005 were $7.26 million and $8.48 mill
respectively. Revenues recorded for the year ebdagmber 31, 2006 declined $1.2 million or 14% fribve
prior
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year. For the year ended December 31, 2006 wededd3.7 million from an NIH contract, NIH grantsdsar
agreement with Saint Louis University, supportimgptof our lead programs. Revenues from NIH gi
supporting these programs during the year endecémier 31, 2005 were $7.2 million. The decline of5
million was partially offset by a $1.8 million irease in revenues recognized from our $3.2 milliore yea
contract with USAMRMC for the rapid identificaticand treatment of antial diseases. The agreement
signed in September 2005 and was completed in ZB@Benue recognized in connection with this agrew
increased from $653,000 in 2005 to $2.5 million2B06. The decline in revenues supporting our tvax
programs was also offset by $409,000 recorded imection with a $500,000, one year, Phase | grant the
NIH to support the development of our Bacterial @Quamsal Vector technology for the delivery of smak
vaccine, which we completed in February 2007. Invépber 2006, we received a $1.4 million, one
contract with the Air Force Medical Service for ttlevelopment of counteneasures against Dengue virt
and other water-related viral agents. In Novemi@¥}62we also received a ogear, $900,000 contract to
the USAF Special Operations Command (USAFSOC)sirdévelopment of specific antiral agents. For tt
year ended December 31, 2006 we recognized revei$2e 7,000 from these contrac

Selling, general and administrative exgasn(“SG&A”) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
were $3.70 million and $4.62 million, respectivelhe decline of $920,000 or 20% is mainly attriloute
professional fees incurred during 2006 in connectioth a business transaction and a wash consultin
charge recorded in 2006. During the year ended mkee 31, 2006 we recorded legal, accounting,
consulting expenses of $861,000, $183,000, and 8082 respectively, for due diligence servicesinies:
opinion and legal advice related to a potentiaifmss transaction. During the year ended Decembe?®)6
we also recorded notash consulting charge of $156,000 related to skeance of warrants to advisors.
decline in SG&A expenses was partially offset byaleexpenses of $240,000 incurred in connectioh witi
defense against an action filed against SIGA, aczbunting fees of $110,000 related to the audibar
Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.

SG&A expenses for the years ended DeceBibhe2006 and 2005 were $4.62 million and $2.48aoni
respectively. The increase of $2.14 million or 8&%nainly attributed to $1.2 million of professidriees an
$530,000 of norcash share base compensation and consulting chagasled for the year ended Decen
31, 2006, and a credit of $303,000 in legal expemseorded in 2005. During the year ended Decerb,
2006 we recorded legal, accounting and consultkpgeses of $861,000, $183,000 and $132,000, regpky¢
for due diligence services, fairness opinion anll@dvice related to a potential business traisadin 2006
we recorded $156,000 of naash consulting charge reflecting the fair marlete of 400,000 warrants issl
under a February 2003 consulting agreement. Foryéae ended December 31, 2006, we also recor
$376,000 norcash charge for share based compensation follothi@g@doption of FAS 123(R) on Januar
2006.

Research and development (“R&@¥penses were $9.94 million and $9.15 million foe years endt
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, an inered$790,000 or 8.7% from the year ended DeceBib
2006. Expenditures related to clinical and plieical testing and manufacturing of our lead daandidate
increased $1.1 million from the year ended Decer8liei2006. Our payroll and related expense hasaser
by $350,000 from the year ended December 31, 2@0@cting the expansion and change in compositi
our research and development workforce. In addititapreciation expense for the year ended DeceBih
2007 increased $294,000 from the same period i5.200ese increases were partially offset by a deali
$602,000 in amortization expense and a decline35fL00 in external R&D service charges relatedut
USAF and US Army contracts.

R&D expenses for the years ended Decer@dbeR006 and 2005 were $9.15 million and $8.30ioni|
respectively. On April 1, 2006, we completed theoration of a new laboratory space in Corvallisegam
Depreciation expense, lab supplies expendituresrantl expense for the year ended December 31,
increased by $637,000, $354,000, and $381,000¢ecHsply, from the same period in 2005. During jeau
ended December 31, 2006, we expanded our R&D wamteffrom 35 full time employees to 41 full ti
employees. R&D payroll and related expenses inerkhy $743,000 as a result of this expansion amdide
paid in 2006 to our R&D employees. In addition, R&Rpenditures related to our contract with USAMR
and two contracts with the U.S. Air Force receined006 increased $646,000 from $249,000 in 20(
$895,000 in 2006. These increases were partiafigebhby a decline of $1.9 million in R&D expendits
related to two of our lead programs.
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During the years ended December 31, 2P0G6 and 2005, we spent $3.2 million, $2.3 milliand $3.
million, respectively, on the development of 846. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we
$924,000 on internal human resources and $2.24omithainly on manufacturing and clinical testingr Fhe
year ended December 31, 2006, we spent $678,006tenmal human resources and $1.6 million on céil
and pre-clinical testing of SZ46. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we sp#&8,000 on intern
human resources and $3.2 million on pre-clinicslitg) of ST-246. From inception of the %6 developme!
program todate, we expended a total of $9.6 million relatedhie program, of which $2.4 million and $
million were spent on internal human resources, alwical and prezlinical work, respectively. The
resources reflect SIGA’research and development expenses directly detatéhe program. They exclu
additional expenditures such as the cost to acdb@eprogram, patent costs, allocation of indirxqgbense:
and the value of other services received from thé &hd the DoD.

During the years ended December 31, 2P0G6 and 2005, we spent $1.3 million, $1.3 millaord $1.i
million, respectively, to support the developmehBd-193, a drug candidate for Lassa fever virug,294, ¢
drug candidate for certain arenavirus pathogertsofimer drug candidates for hemorrhagic fevers.thewyea
ended December 31, 2007, we spent $227,000 omaitbuman resources and $1.1 million mainly on pre-
clinical testing. For the year ended December 3D62 we spent $536,000 on internal human resolane
$729,000 on prelinical testing. For the year ended December 8052we spent $777,000 on internal hu
resources and $787,000 on pre-clinical testingTeR®4. From inception of our programs to developlSB
ST-294, and other drug candidates for hemorrhayjiers, todate, we spent a total of $4.5 million relatedhte
programs, of which $1.8 million and $2.7 million weexpended on internal human resources andlmieal
work, respectively. These resources reflect SkGEsearch and development expenses directly defatéhe
programs. They exclude additional expenditures sashthe cost to acquire the programs, patent
allocation of indirect expenses, and the valuetb&oservices received from the NIH and the DoD.

For the years ended December 31, 20006 2thd 2005, we spent $1.3 million, $1.6 milliomd
$381,000, respectively, in expenses related toWsAF and US Army Agreements. During the year el
December 31, 2007, we spent $910,000 on intermabhuresources and $372,000 for external R&D ses
During the year ended December 31, 2006, we sg98,800 and $910,000 on internal human resourcd
external R&D services, respectively. For the yeadezl December 31, 2005, we spent $132,000 on al
human resources and $249,000 for external R&D sesvielated to the program. Costs related to ouk wn
the USAF Agreements from September 2005 to date $@12 million, of which we spent $1.7 million aftl.c
million on internal human resources and externaDRs&ervices, respectively. These resources refllBAS
research and development expenses directly relatdtese agreements. They exclude additional expeas
such as patent costs and allocation of indirecerses.

Our product programs are in the earlgetaf development. At this stage of development,caeno
make reasonable estimates of the potential coshést of our programs to be completed or the timeli take
to complete the project. Our lead product, ST-246an orally administered antiral drug that targets tl
smallpox virus. In December 2005 the FDA acceptadidD application for ST-246 and granted it Fasack
status. In December 2006, the FDA granted Orpharg @esignation to SP46, for the prevention as well
the treatment of smallpox. We expect that costsotoplete the program will approximate $15 millian®2(
million, and that the project could be completed2ih months to 36 months. There is a high risk afi-no
completion of any program, including 2B6, because of the lead time to program completi@huncertaini
of the costs. Net cash inflows from any productsettigped from our programs is at least one to thyesa:
away. However, we could receive additional grantstracts or technology licenses in the shemnta. The
potential cash and timing is not known and we cabeacertain if they will ever occur.

The risk of failure to complete any pragr is high, as each, other than our smallpox progndaict
successfully completed 21-day dassealating studies in 2007, is in the relativelglyestage of developme!
Products for the biological warfare defense markath as the ST-246 smallpox awitial, could genera
revenues in one to three years. We believe theuptedlirected toward this market are on schedule eipec
the future research and development cost of olodiital warfare defense programs to increase apdtentia
products enter animal studies and safety testimduding human safety trials. Funds for future depmen
will be partially paid for by NIH contracts and gta, additional government funding and from futfinancing
If we are unable to obtain additional federal gsaahd contracts or funding in the required amouittite
development timeline for
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these products would slow or possibly be susperidelhy or suspension of any of our programs coakklal
adverse impact on our ability to raise funds in fileire, enter into collaborations with corporatatpers ¢
obtain additional federal funding from contractgoants.

Patent preparation expenses for the yeaded December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $515,00
$295,000, respectively. Patent preparation expemseeased $220,000, or 75%, mainly due to newdt
related to our leading drug candidates.

Patent preparation costs for the yeaedrdlecember 31, 2006 were $295,000 compared to, 2320l
the year ended December 31, 2005. The increas@&,00®, or 27%, is mainly due to a refund of $83
received in 2005 from our patent legal counsel.

Total operating loss for the years enBedember 31, 2007 and 2006 was $7.5 million ané 8llion,
respectively. Our operating loss increased mainly t a decline of $600,000 in revenues generat@d07
and an increase in R&D and patent expenses of 80Q%nd $220,000, respectively, partially offsetd
decline of $932,000 in G&A expenses.

Total operating loss for the year endeddmnber 31, 2006 was $6.8 million compared witth $2illion
for 2005. The increase of $4.2 million in operatings relates mainly to $1.2 million of professibfees
incurred in connection with a potential businessigaction, a decline of $1.2 million in revenuesegated i
2006, and an increase of $870,000 in non-cash segerecorded for depreciation, amortization andcash
compensation.

Changes in the fair value of common stogkts and common stock warrants sold togethdr agmmoil
stock in October 2006 and November 2005 are redoadegains or losses. For the years ended Decesil
2007 and 2006, we recorded a gain of $1.4 milliod @ loss of $3.1 million, respectively, reflecticlganges i
the fair market value of warrants and rights tochase common stock during the respective yearswahant:
and rights to purchase common stock of SIGA wecended at fair market value and classified as lids a
the time of the transaction. For the year endecebser 31, 2005, we recorded a gain of $253,00&ctéafc
the decline in the fair value of the warrants anel tights to acquire additional shares of our comrstwck
from October 2005 through December 31, 2005.

Other income for the years ended Decen3der2007, 2006, and 2005, was $394,000, $1,604
$9,000, respectively. Other income in 2007 repriesemterest income on our cash and cash equiglént
the year ended December 31, 2006, we recordedesitémcome of $147,000 generated from higher
balance subsequent to the October 2006 sale of $tiB#non stock and warrants. Interest income in 20&%
offset by interest charges of $114,000 relatintpéms payable in the amount of $3.0 million whicé paid ir
full in October 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On December 31, 2007, we had $6.8 millioncash and cash equivalents. During the yeard
December 31, 2007, we received net proceeds of $#llidbn from exercises of warrants and option:
purchase shares of the CompangZommon stock, and repaid the entire balance 80800 due on a lo:
payable.

In September 2007, we received a ywar grant for a total of approximately $600,00pmrting ou
development of ST-246 treatment of smallpox vaceaieted adverse events. In July 2007, we were ada
two-year grant for a total of $530,000 to suppant trep program.

Operating activities

Net cash used in operations during treryended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $5.4mél
$4.4 million, respectively. The increase in nethcased in operations is mainly due to the use ditiathal casl
to support clinical and prelinical testing of our leading programs and to [Bup the increase in our Ré&
payroll expenses. In addition, during the year en@=cember 31, 2007, our account receivable ba
increased
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$300,000, compared with a decline of $266,000 itoants receivable during the same period in 2006
result of collection of accounts receivable thateveutstanding at December 31, 2005.

Investing activities

Capital expenditures during the yearseenfecember 31, 2007 and 2006 were $1.2 million
$884,000, respectively, and mainly supported thevation of our research facility in Oregon.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities w§®.9 million and $14.2 million during the yearsder
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Duriegyfar ended December 31, 2007 we received neteult
of $3.0 million from exercises of options and watgato purchase common stock, and repaid the drdlenc
of $130,000 due on a loan payable to General EteCapital Corporation. During the year ended Deoe
31, 2006 we received $8.4 million from the saleahmon stock and warrants to acquire common stttk
million from the exercise of options and warrardgptirchase shares of common stock, and $1.5 millmm
exercises of rights to purchase 1,500,000 sharesarafommon stock for $1.10 per share.

Other

We have incurred cumulative net lossabsepect to incur additional losses to performifertresearc
and development activities. We do not have comrakprbducts and have limited capital resources. {iam:
with regard to these matters include continued ldgweent of our products as well as seeking addi
working capital through a combination of collabaratagreements, strategic alliances, research graquit
and debt financing. Although we continue to purthese plans, there is no assurance that we wilibeessft
in obtaining future financing on commercially reaable terms or that we will be able to secure fagdiron
anticipated government contracts and grants.

We believe that our existing cash balancembined with cash flows primarily from conting
government grants and contracts, anticipated nevergment grants and contracts or reduction of it
operating expenses will be sufficient to support operations beyond the next twelve months, and
sufficient cash flows will be available to meet dawsiness objectives during that period.

Our working capital and capital requirertse will depend upon numerous factors, inclu
pharmaceutical research and development programesglipical and clinical testing; timing and cost
obtaining regulatory approvals; levels of resourttest we devote to the development of manufactuang
marketing capabilities; technological advancesustaf competitors; and our ability to establishiadmorative
arrangements with other organizations.

Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments andPurchase Obligations

As of December 31, 2007, our purchas@atibns are not material. We lease certain faediand offic
space under operating leases. Minimum future reatshmitments under operating leases having non-
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year dod@sgs:

Year ended December &

200¢ 576,94¢
200¢ 579,64
201 466,44t
2011 443,74
Total $ 2,066,79:
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
SIGA does not have any off-balance she@ingements.
Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SI&ahnologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bedasheets and the related consolidated statemé
operations, of changes in stockholdegguity and of cash flows present fairly, in all evél respects, ti
financial position of SIGA Technologies, Inc. amslsubsidiary at December 31, 2007 and 2006, andegult
of their operations and their cash flows for eathhe three years in the period ended Decembel@Q7 ir
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America. Also in opinmion
the Company maintained, in all material respect&ctve internal control over financial reportires o
December 31, 2007, based on criteria establishddtémnal Control - Integrated Frameworissued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Compasyhanageme
is responsible for these financial statementspfamtaining effective internal control over finaalcreporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofrriatecontrol over financial reporting, included
Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Remgtiappearing under Item 9A. (
responsibility is to express opinions on theserfai@ statements and on the Companiyiternal control ovt
financial reporting based on our audits (which \aasintegrated audit in 2007). We conducted our taud
accordance with the standards of the Public Compsegounting Oversight Board (United States). Ti
standards require that we plan and perform thetsitmiobtain reasonable assurance about whethéintreia
statements are free of material misstatement aretheh effective internal control over financial ogfing wa
maintained in all material respects. Our auditshef financial statements included examining, opst basit
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosur#éifinancial statements, assessing the accouptingiples
used and significant estimates made by managenserd, evaluating the overall financial staten
presentation. Our audit of internal control overaficial reporting included obtaining an understagdo!
internal control over financial reporting, assegsthe risk that a material weakness exists, antihtesnc
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéasternal control based on the assessed risk.aDdits als
included performing such other procedures as waidered necessary in the circumstances. We befiei
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our op#i

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company changed the manner iohw
accounts for uncertain tax positions effective dapd, 2007, and changed the manner in which ib@ats fo
share-based compensation effective January 1, 2006.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aopess designed to provide reasonable asst
regarding the reliability of financial reporting gthe preparation of financial statements for exdkepurpose
in accordance with generally accepted accountirigciples. A companys internal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(ihpertain to the maintenance of records tinateasonabl
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transawesi and dispositions of the assets of the comp@inygrovide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegcessary to permit preparation of financetestents i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies; and that receipts and expenditures of thepamy
are being made only in accordance with authoriratiof management and directors of the company;(iéh
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiaimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,us¢
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or ¢
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjech®risk the
controls may become inadequate because of changamditions, or that the degree of compliance it
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 12, 2008
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenst¢

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill

Intangible assets, n

Other asset

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and ott
Accrued bonuse
Notes payabli

Total current liabilities
Non-current portion of notes payat
Common stock warran

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock ($.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 33,937,549 and 32,452,210 issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, respectively

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31,

December 31,

2007 2006
$ 6,832,29 $ 10,639,53
986,48t 617,03
130,11 141,03
7,948,89. 11,397,59
1,479,67: 1,320,31!
898,33 898,33

— 165,24

261,76 246,20

$ 10,588,67 $ 14,027,68
$ 1,321,14 $ 1,357,90
594,52« 382,67
202,00 201,82

— 107,52
2,117,671 2,049,93
— 22,80¢
3,242,79 4,673,09!
5,360,46 6,745,83
3,39¢ 3,24¢
67,230,908 63,646,22
(62,006,17) (56,367,61)
5,228,20! 7,281,85

$ 10,588,67. $ 14,027,68

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 300

2007 2006 2005

Revenue:
Research and developm:e $ 6,698,71 $ 7,257,53. $ 8,476,74.

Operating expenst
Selling, general and administrati 3,704,05! 4,623,57 2,481,48!
Research and developm 9,942,50: 9,149,32 8,295,26:
Patent preparation fe: 515,26 295,00¢ 232,32¢
Total operating expens 14,161,82  14,067,91 11,009,08
(7,463,10) (6,810,37) (2,532,33)

Operating los!

Decrease (increase) in fair market value of comstook rights
1,430,30.  (3,089,99) 235,73(

and common stock warrar
Other income (expense), r 394,24¢ 1,667 9,05¢
Net loss $(5,638,55) $(9,898,70) $(2,287,55I)
Weighted average shares outstanding: basic and 33,330,81.  28,200,13  24,824,82

$ (019 $ (035 $  (0.09

Net loss per share: basic and dilu

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 200

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stock Common Stock
Shares  Amount Shares Amount

Balance at January 1, 200! 68,03¢ $58,67. 24,500,64 $2,45(
Net proceeds allocated to the issuance of comnumi

($1.00 per share 2,000,00! $ 20C
Stock options issued to members of the Board of

Directors
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C 68,03¢ $58,67: 26,500,64 $2,65(
Net proceeds allocated to the issuance of comnuak

($4.54 per share 2,000,001 $ 20C
Conversion of preferred stock for common st (68,039  (58,672) 68,03¢ 7
Stock based compensati
Stock issued for servict
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options and warran 2,383,52 23¢
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of commc

stock rights 1,500,001 15C
Fair value of exercised common stock rights and

warrants
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C — % —  32,452.21 $3,24¢
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options and warrani 1,485,33! 14¢
Stock based compensati
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2007 — % —  33,937,54 $3,39¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
(Continued)
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 200

Balance at January 1, 200!

Net proceeds allocated to the issuance of comr
stock ($1.00 per shar

Stock options issued to members of the Board of
Directors

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net proceeds allocated to the issuance of corr
stock ($4.54 per shar

Conversion of preferred stock for common st
Stock based compensati

Stock issued for servict

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options and warrani

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of comn
stock rights

Fair value of exercised common stock rights and
warrants

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options and warrani

Stock based compensati
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Total
Additional Paid  Accumulated Stockholders’
in Capital Deficit Equity
$48,679,65 $(44,181,36) $ 4,559,41.
$ 947,26 947,46¢
11,70( 11,70(
(2,287,55) (2,287,551
$49,638,61 $(46,468,91) $ 3,231,03
$ 5,948,32 5,948,52i
58,66 —
470,89: 470,89:
156,47( 156,47(
4,337,60: 4,337,84,
1,534,35! 1,534,50!
1,501,291 1,501,209
(9,898,70) (9,898,70i)
$63,646,22 $(56,367,61) $7,281,85!
3,013,84. 3,013,99i
570,92. 570,92.
(5,638,55) (5,638,55)
$67,230,98 $(62,006,17) $5,228,20!

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 200

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash irsegerating
activities:
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible asse
(Increase) decrease in fair market value of righid warrant:
Stock based compensati
Non-cash consulting expen
Loss on impairment of investmer
Loss on writ-off of prepaid investment
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenst
Other asset
Deferred revenu
Accounts payable and accrued expel

Net cash used in operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock andateres
Proceeds from issuance of notes pay
Net proceeds from exercise of common stock ri
Net proceeds from exercise of warrants and op!
Repayment of notes payal

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Cash paid for interest on notes paye

Non-cash supplemental informatic
Conversion of preferred stock to common st
Cashless exercise of warrants to purchase comrook

2007 2006 2005
$(5,638,55) $(9,898,70) $(2,287,55)
1,083,70! 788,01 145,80¢
165,24: 767,49.  1,181,56:
(1,430,30)  3,089,99 (235,73()
570,92 470,89: 11,70(
— 156,47( —

— — 15,00(

— — 116,24:
(369,45 266,02 (774,15()
10,91° 19,11: 2,16(
(15,56%) (12,07%) (67,407
— (347,319 347,31
175,26( 262,09 152,58
(5,447,83)  (4,438,00) (1,392,45)
(1,243,06)  (884,18)  (861,94)
(1,243,06)  (884,18)  (861,94)
— 8424400  1,791,71L

— 3,000,001 276,43

— 1,534,501 —
3,013,990  4,337,84. —
(130,329  (3,107,52)) (62,209)
2,883,66. 14,189,22  2,005,94:
(3,807,24)  8,867,04 (248,445
10,639,53  1,772,48  2,020,93i
$ 6,832,29 $10,639,53 $ 1,772,48!
$ 10,19 $ 135058 $ 11,10
$ — $ 5867 $ —
$ 153,80 $ — 3 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

SIGA Technologies, Inc. (“SIGA” or the “Company”} ia biodefense company engaged in the disco
development and commercialization of products fee in defense against biological warfare agenth si
Smallpox and Arenaviruses. The Company is also gadjan the discovery and development of other r
antiinfectives, vaccines, and antibiotics for the prdgim and treatment of serious infectious disea$bs
Company’s anti-viral programs are designed to prewee limit the replication of viral pathogens. $\G anti-
infectives programs target the increasingly serfmablem of drug resistant bacteria and emergirnigqegens.

Basis of presentatiol

The accompanying consolidated financial statembaie been prepared on a basis which assumes d
Company will continue as a going concern and wiinhtemplates the realization of assets and thsfaetior
of liabilities and commitments in the normal courdfebusiness. The Company has incurred cumulatet
losses and expects to incur additional losses tfoqe further research and development activitiEbe
Company does not have commercial products and ihated capital resources. Managemsenglans witl
regard to these matters include continued develaprmkits products as well as seeking additionskagc!
support funds and future financial arrangementshaigh management will continue to pursue thesas
there is no assurance that the Company will be emsfal in obtaining sufficient future financing
commercially reasonable terms or that the Compafiypeable to secure funding from anticipated goween
contracts and grants. Management believes thatirexisash balances combined with cash flows prily
from continuing government grants and contracticigated new government grants and contracts duratgor
of certain operating expenses will be sufficientstgport its operations beyond the next twelve mgnan
will fund the Companys business objectives during that period. If then@any is unable to raise adeqt
capital or achieve profitability, future operationdl need to be scaled back or discontinued. Gurance of th
Company as a going concern is dependent upon, awtheg things, the success of the Companmg'searc
and development programs and the Compaability to obtain adequate financing. The finahstatements ¢
not include any adjustments relating to the recaliity of the carrying amount of recorded asseats
liabilities that might result from the outcome bése uncertainties.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements and relaisdlabures are prepared in conformity with accowg
principles generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica. Management is required to make estimate
assumptions that affect the reported amounts atasnd liabilities, the disclosure of contingessets an
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl revenue and expenses during the period repdrtes
estimates include the realization of deferred tssets, useful lives and impairment of goodwill, aadgible
and intangible assets, and the value of optionsveardants granted or issued by the Company. Estisna:
assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effetrevisions are reflected in the financial sta¢nts in th
period they are determined to be necessary. Aotsalts could differ from these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of short tergh)yhliquid investments, with original maturitie$ less tha
three months when purchased and are stated atmiesest is accrued as earned.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Depreciation is pexioh the
straight-line method over the estimated usefuldieéthe various asset classes. Estimated liveS gears for
laboratory equipment; 3 years for computer equigmégears for furniture and fixtures; and the lifethe
lease for
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leasehold improvements. Maintenance, repairs amtbmieplacements are charged to expense as inc
Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the costratadled accumulated depreciation are removed fiog
Balance Sheet and any gain or loss is reflectélddrstatement of Operations.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company recognizes revenue from contract reseand development and research paymen
accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin N641 Revenue Recognition, (“SAB 104')h accordanc
with SAB 104, revenue is recognized when persuaswieence of an arrangement exists, delivery
occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, coilglity is reasonably assured, contractual obligasi have bee
satisfied and title and risk of loss have beendifiemed to the customer. The Company recognizesnteyfron
non-refundable ufront payments, not tied to achieving a specificf@enance milestone, over the pel
which the Company is obligated to perform servioesbased on the percentage of costs incurred te,
estimated costs to complete and total expectedraintevenue. Payments for development activitie
recognized as revenue as earned, over the perieffarf. Substantive aisk milestone payments, which
based on achieving a specific performance milestareerecognized as revenue when the milestonghis\ae(
and the related payment is due, providing thermifuture service obligation associated with thdestone. I
situations where the Company receives paymentvarazk of the performance of services, such amaane
deferred and recognized as revenue as the relateidess are performed.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, &bl 28venues from National Institutes of Health I{R)
contracts and grants was 71%, 53%, and 87%, reégplgciof total revenues recognized by the Company.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable are recorded net of provisfonsloubtful accounts. An allowance for doubtfutaants is
based on specific analysis of the receivables. étdmnber 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Companydad n
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Research and developme

Research and development expenses include cosstlgirattributable to the conduct of research
development programs, including employee relateddsganaterials, supplies, depreciation on and reaartc
of research equipment, the cost of services proviule outside contractors, and facility costs, sashrent
utilities, and general support services. All coassociated with research and development are exgex
incurred. Costs related to the acquisition of tedbgy rights, for which development work is stili proces:
and that have no alternative future uses, are egokas incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paicah acquisition exceeds the estimated fair vafube ne
identified tangible and intangible assets acquired.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment afiguén the fourth quarter of each year. In additidhe
Company would test goodwill for recoverability betsn annual evaluations whenever events or cham
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounty m@ be recoverable. Examples of such events
include a significant adverse change in legal matiequidity or in the business climate, an adeeastion o
assessment by a regulator or government organizdties of key personnel, or new circumstanceswioatd
cause an expectation that it is more likely thahthat we would sell or otherwise dispose of a répg unit,
Goodwill impairment is determined using a tsi®@p approach in accordance with Statement of Eial
Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Othdaigible Assets” (“SFAS 142"Yhe impairment revie
process compares the fair value of the reportinginivhich goodwill resides to its carrying valua.2007 an
2006, the Company operated as one business andepoeting unit. Therefore, the goodwill impairm
analysis was performed on the basis of the Compargywhole using the market capitalization of then@an)
as an estimate of its fair value.

Identified Intangible Asset:

Acquisitiontelated intangibles include acquired technologystamer contracts, grants and covenants r
compete, and are amortized on a straight line lmasis periods ranging from 2-4 years.
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In accordance with Statement of Financial Account8tandards No. 144Atcounting for the Impairment «
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144the Company performs a review of its identifiedaimgible
assets to determine if facts and circumstances wkich indicate that the useful life is shortearthoriginally
estimated or that the carrying amount of assetsmape recoverable. If such facts and circumstadoeexist
the Company assesses the recoverability of idedtifitangible assets by comparing the projectedsoadntec
net cash flows associated with the related assefraup of assets over their remaining lives agaihetr
respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if anybased on the excess of the carrying amount owefatin
value of those assets. Our estimates of projeasH flows are dependent on many factors, includiengera
economic trends, technological developments andegted future contracts and government grantss
reasonably likely that future cash flows associatéth our intangible assets may exceed or fall sbbrour
current projections, in which case a different antdar impairment would result.

Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assetianitity method prescribed by Statement of Finah
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Ineraxes.”Deferred income taxes are recorded
temporary differences between financial statemantygig amounts and the tax basis of assets ahilitlizs.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the tates expected to be in effect for the years inckvithe
differences are expected to reverse. A valuatitowaince is provided if it is more likely than nbiat some o
the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FA8&pretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty i
Income Taxe—an Interpretation of FASB Statement J@AN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive m¢
for the manner in which a company should recogmzeasure, present and disclose in its financid¢stants
all material uncertain tax positions that the Comphas taken or expects to take on a tax return.

As of the date of adoption, there were no tax pwsstfor which it is reasonably possible that thiltamount:
of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly nease or decrease within twelve months from the dé
adoption of FIN 48 or from December 31, 2007. ADacember 31, 2007, the only tax jurisdiction toickt
the Company is subject is the United States. Opeiyears relate to years in which unused net opgrisses
were generated. Thus, upon adoption of FIN 48,Gbmpanys open tax years extend back to 1995. In
event that the Company concludes that it is subjednterest and/or penalties arising from uncartzix
positions, the Company will present interest andaftees as a component of income taxes. No amoafr
interest or penalties were recognized in the Comiga@onsolidated Statements of Operations or Coregelil
Balance Sheets upon adoption of FIN 48 or as offanthe year ended December 31, 2007.

Net loss per common sha

The Company computes, presents and discloses ganpan share in accordance with SFAS 128rhings Pe
Share” (“EPS”)which specifies the computation, presentation aisdlasure requirements for earnings

share of entities with publicly held common stoak pmtential common stock. The statement defines
earnings per share calculations, basic and dildtkd.objective of basic EPS is to measure the pedoce o
an entity over the reporting period by dividingdnte (loss) by the weighted average shares outsigndihe
objective of diluted EPS is consistent with thatbakic EPS, that is to measure the performance @ity
over the reporting period, while giving effect th dilutive potential common shares that were ariding
during the period. The calculation of diluted EBSimilar to basic EPS except the denominatoraseamsed fo
the conversion of potential common shares.

The Company incurred losses for the years endeémleer 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and as a resuiairc
equity instruments are excluded from the calcutatib diluted loss per share. At December 31, 2@85038
shares of the Compars/'Series A convertible preferred stock have beatudrd from the computation
diluted loss per share as they were anti-dilutiMeese shares were converted into shares of the &uyisp
common stock in 2006. At December 31, 2007, 200@, 2005, outstanding options to purchase 8,159
7,736,145, and 9,399,561 shares, respectivelyhofCtompanys common stock with exercise prices rang
from $0.94 to $4.63 have been excluded from thepedation of diluted loss per share as they aredihtiive.
At December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, outstandiagants to purchase 8,262,377, 9,441,915, and 932
shares, respectively, of the Compangbmmon stock, with exercise prices ranging franl8 to $4.99 hav
been excluded from the computation of diluted fpsisshare as they are anti-dilutive.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsplatts payable and accrued expenses approximat
value due to the relatively short maturity of théss&truments. Common stock rights and warrants kviaic
classified as assets or liabilities under the miowis of EITF 00t9, are recorded at their fair market value
each reporting period.

Concentration of credit risk

The Company has cash in bank accounts that exbedéederal Deposit Insurance Corporation insuraddi
The Company has not experienced any losses onagis accounts. No allowance has been provide
potential credit losses because management belieaeany such losses would be minimal.

Share-based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statenielinancial Accounting Standards No. 123 (rev
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)Which requires the measurement and recognitic
compensation expense for all shhesed payment awards made to employees and dsettoluding
employee stock options and employee stock purchataesd to the Employee Stock Purchase Plamfloye:
stock purchaseshased on estimated fair values. SFAS 123(R) regjgioenpanies to estimate the fair valu
sharebased awards on the grant date using an optiomgnmodel. The value of the portion of the awaral
is ultimately expected to vest is recorded as espaver the requisite periods in the Comparognsolidate
statement of operations.

The following table illustrates the effect on nesd and net loss per share as if the Company tgigdhe fai
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, agaded by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosures” (“SFA8") during the year ended December 31, 2005.

2005

Net loss available to common stockholders, as teg $(2,287,55()
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensgdied|in

reported net los 11,70(
Deduct: Total stock based compensation expensentgieted under tt

fair value based methc (709,289
Net loss available to common stockholders, pro & $(2,985,13)
Loss per common sha- basic and dilutec

As reportec $ (0.09)

Pro forma $ (0.12)

Segment informatior

The Company is managed and operated as one busifibesentire business is managed by a s
management team that reports to the chief execoffiger. The Company does not operate separads ki
business or separate business entities with respeaty of its product candidates. Accordingly, @empan'
does not prepare discrete financial informatiorhwespect to separate product areas or by locatioinonl
has one reportable segment as defined by SFAS Blg. “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
Related Information”.

Recent accounting pronouncemer

In June 2007, the FASB issued EITF Issue 0A8cbunting for Advance Payments for Goods or Sewit
Be Used in Future Research and Development A&®/At{EITF 073). The scope of this Issue is limitec
nonrefundable advance payments for goods and ssrvalated to research and development activilibe
Issue addresses whether such advanced paymentkl df@expensed as incurred or capitalized. SIC
required to adopt EITF 03-effective January 1, 2008. As of December 31,728 Company does not hi
any arrangements that would be subject to the sobp&lF 07-3.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141Rjslfiiess Combinations'SFAS 141R requires tt
acquiring entity in a business combination to rdat assets acquired and liabilities assumedeat tspective
acquisitiondate fair values, changes the recognition of assegsired and liabilities assumed arising fr
contingencies, changes the recognition and measuterof contingent consideration, and requires
expensing of acquisitiorelated costs as incurred. SFAS 141R also reqaddgional disclosure of informatic
surrounding a business combination, such that ugehe entitys financial statements can fully understand
nature and financial impact of the business contlmna SFAS 141R applies prospectively to busir
combinations for which the acquisition date is anafier the beginning of the first annual reportiperiod
beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The prongsof SFAS 141R will only impact us if we are fyao a
business combination after the pronouncement hars dgopted.

In December 2007, the FASB also issued SFAS No, li6@controlling Interests in Consolidated Financ
Statements - an amendment of Accounting ReseartdtiBINo. 51.SFAS 160 requires an entity to class
noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries as a spazomponent of equity. Additionally, transactidsetween a
entity and noncontrolling interests are requirethédreated as equity transactions. We are cuyrertiluating
the impact of this statement on our financial steets. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beijig after
December 15, 2008. As of December 31, 2007, weerelthat SFAS 160 will not affect our consolide
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

3. Research Agreements

In September 2007, we received a tyear grant for a total of approximately $600,00@marting our
development of ST-246 treatment of smallpox vaceelated adverse events. In July 2007, we were adaa
two-year grant for a total of $530,000 to suppant trep program.

On August 30, 2006, the Company received a thesg; $6.0 million award from the NIH to suppore
development of its antiviral drugs for the Lasseefevirus. On August 1, 2006, SIGA received a thyear,
$4.8 million Phase Il continuation grant from théHNo support the Company’development of its smallpt
drug candidate, SIGA 246. On September 26, 2006,Gbmpany entered into a threear, $16.5 millior
contract with the National Institute of Allergy ardfectious Diseases of the NIH, to further advarice
development of SIGA-246, the Compasygmallpox drug candidate. In November 2006, Slédeived a $1.
million, one year contract with the Air Force MealiGervice for the development of counteeasures again
Dengus viruses and other water-related viral agentsNovember 2006 SIGA also received a geer,
$900,000 contract to aid the USAF Special Operati@ommand (USAFSOC) in its development of spe
anti-viral agents.

4. Intangible Assets

The following table presents the components ofGbmpany’s acquired intangible assets with finivedi

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Gross Carryin Gross Carryin
Accumulated Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Acquired Grant: $1,962,69: $1,962,690 $— $1,962,69: $1,962,69: $ —
Customer contract
and grant: 83,57: 83,57: — 83,571 83,57: —
Covenants not to
compete 202,00( 202,00( — 202,00( 202,00( —
Acquired technolog 330,48: 330,48 — 330,48 165,24( 165,24

$2,578,74 $2,578,74 $— $2,578,74 $2,413,50. $165,24:
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Amortization expense for intangible assets andscostuded the following:

Year Ended December 3

2007 2006
Amortization of acquired gran $ — $ 654,22¢
Amortization of customer contract and gra — 30,64+
Amortization of acquired technolo¢ 165,24: 82,62(

$ 165,24: $ 767,49:

At December 31, 2007, the Company'’s intangible tasse fully amortized.
5. Stockholders’ Equity

At December 31, 2007, the Compasyauthorized share capital consisted of 110,000€0@0es, of whic
100,000,000 are designated common shares and 10000fre designated preferred shares. The Company’
Board of Directors is authorized to issue prefeighdres in series with rights, privileges and djealions o
each series determined by the Board.

2006 Placement

On October 19, 2006, the Company sold 2,000,00feshz the Compang’common stock at $4.54 per st
and warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of tmep&uwy's common stock. The warrants have an i
exercise price of $4.99 per share and may be eegtat any time and from time to time through arudliding
the seventh anniversary of the closing date. ABaxfember 31, 2007, warrants to acquire 1,000,086esho
common stock were outstanding.

The Company accounted for the transaction underptoegisions of EITF O®9 which requires that fr
standing derivative financial instruments that iegjuet cash settlement be classified as assdishilities a
the time of the transaction, and recorded at fla@irvalue. EITF 00:9 also requires that any changes in the
value of the derivative instruments be reportede@mnings or loss as long as the derivative corgtrac
classified as assets or liabilities. At DecemberZD7, the fair market value of the warrants wa$ $nillion.
The Company applied the Bla8choles model to calculate the fair values of tespective derivati
instruments using the contracted term of the wasraManagement estimates the expected volatilitggue
combination of the Comparg/historical volatility and the volatility of a gup of comparable companies. Sl
recorded a gain of $870,000 for the decline initistrumentsfair value from December 31, 2006 to Decen
31, 2007 and a gain of $70,000 for the declinainvalue during 2006.

2005 Placement

In November 2005, the Company sold 2,000,000 stafrtee Companys common stock at $1.00 per share
warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Coffmaommon stock at an initial exercise price of 8Jp#|
share, at any time and from time to time througth imcluding the seventh anniversary of the closiate. A:
of December 31, 2007, warrants to acquire 725,8@0es of common stock were outstanding.

The Company accounted for the transaction undepittsions of EITF 0Q9. At December 31, 2007, the
market value of the warrants to acquire commonksteess $1.7 million. SIGA recorded a gain of $560,06r
the decline in the instrumentidir value from December 31, 2006 to December 3D72and a loss of $:
million for the increase in fair value during 2006.

Preferred Stock

Holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Staiekentitled to (i) cumulative dividends at an walrrate o
6% payable when and if declared by the Compagard of directors; (ii) in the event of liquibet of the
Company, each holder is entitled to receive $1.4335share (subject to certain adjustments) pluacalue:
but unpaid dividends; (iii) convert each share efi& A to a number of fully paid and nassessable share:
common stock as calculated by dividing $1.4375Hey $eries A Conversion Price (shall initially be4®lr5)
and (iv) vote with the holders of other classestares on an -converted basis



During the year ended December 31, 2006 certaiieqpesl stockholders converted 68,038 Series A adiine
preferred stock into 68,038 shares of common stock.

On December 31, 2007, no shares of Series A CdhleeRreferred Stock were outstanding.
6. Stock option plan and warrants
Amended and Restated 1996 Incentive anc-Qualified Stock Option Plan

In January 1996, the Company implemented its 19@@rtive and NorQualified Stock Option Plan (t
“Plan”™). The Plan as amended provides for the gngrdf up to 11,000,000 shares of the Company’smaom
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stock to employees, consultants and outside directbthe Company. The exercise period for optigrate
under the Plan, except those granted to outsidectdirs, is determined by a committee of the Bod
Directors. Stock options granted to outside dinecpursuant to the Plan must have an exercise pgaal to ¢
in excess of the fair market value of the Compangimmon stock at the date of grant.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 200& dhgany recorded compensation expense of $57
and $471,000, respectively, related to stock ogtidie total fair value of options vested duringtegear wa
$350,500 and $782,200 for 2007 and 2006, respégtiVhe total compensation cost not yet recognizdate(
to nonvested awards at December 31, 2007 is $1.4 millidre weighted average period over which -
compensation cost is expected to be recognize@@sykars.

SIGA calculated the fair value of options awardedmty the three years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
2005 using the Black-Scholes model with the follagviveighted average assumptions:

Weighted Average Assumptiol 2007 2006 2005
Expected volatility 66.00% 60.0(% 60%- 75%
Dividend Yield 0.00%  0.0(% 0.0(%
Risk-free interest rat 4.61%- 4.82% 4.4% 3.00%- 4.0(%
Expected holding perio 5 Yrs 5 Yrs 2-5Yrs

The Company calculates the expected volatility gisstncombination of SIGA' historical volatility and tt
volatility of a group of comparable companies. Thsk-free interest rate assumption is based upon old
interest rate appropriate for the term of the Camgfmemployee stock options. The dividend yield asgion
is based on the Compayintent not to issue a dividend in the foreseeflilere. The expected holding per
assumption was estimated based on historical expegiand expectation of employee exercise behavibe
future giving consideration to the contractual temnhthe award.
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Stock options activity of the Company is summariasedollows:

Number  Average
of Exercise
Shares Price($)

Options outstanding at January 1, 2! 9,767,06. $ 1.9¢
Granted 90,00( 1.22
Forfeited (452,500 1.6C
Exercisec — —

Options outstanding at December 31, 2 9,404,56: 2.0C
Granted 337,50( 2.2¢
Forfeited (1,265,16) 1.3C
Expired (33,339 1.5C
Exercisec (897,41H 1.74

Options outstanding at December 31, 2 7,546,14! 2.07
Granted 935,00t 3.17
Forfeited (92,08¢) 2.2¢
Expired (50,399 5.04
Exercisec (368,899 1.71

Options outstanding at December 31, 2 7,969,76! $ 2.2¢

Weighted
Average
Number of Intrinsic Value
Shares %)

Nonvested options at December 31, 2 343,98: 1.92

Nonvested options at December 31, 2 972,05¢ 0.22

Options vested during 20( 216,42: 0.7¢

Options available for future grant at DecemberZ}7 1,545,96.

Weighted average fair value of options grantedraui007 $ 1.87

Weighted average fair value of options grantedraui00€ $ 1.24

Weighted average fair value of options grantedrapi005 $ 0.64

Weighted average fair value of options forfeitedirigi 2007 $ 1.3¢

Weighted average fair value of options forfeitedirig 200¢ $ 1.0Z

Weighted average fair value of options forfeitedirig 200" $ 1.04

Total intrinsic value of options exercised durir@pZ $ 506,00(

Total intrinsic value of options exercised durir@p8 $1,939,00i

The following table summarizes information aboptions outstanding at December 31, 2007:

Weighted
Number of Average Number Fully

Options Remaining Vested & Weighted Aggregate
Range of Outstanding at Contractual Weighted Exercisable at  Average Intrinsic Value
Exercise December 31, Average Exercist December 31, Exercise Price at December 31,
Price($) 2007 Life (Years) Price ($) 2007 %) 2007
0.94-1.8¢ 2,279,08 6.3¢ 1.3¢ 2,167,03I 1.3¢ $3,754,72i
2.00- 2.7¢ 4,412,85! 3.41 2.4: 4,412,85! 2.4% 2,848,79
3.10- 5.5C 1,277,83 7.72 3.4z 417,83( 4.0¢ —

7,969,76 6,997,71i $6,603,52-
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The following tables summarize information aboutraats outstanding at December 31, 2007:

Weighted Average

Number of
Warrants Exercise Price Expiration Dates
Outstanding at January 1, 20 8,529,82 $ 2.3¢
Granted 1,060,001 1.1¢ 11/2/2012
Exercisec — —
Canceled / Expire (150,800 2.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 9,439,02; $ 2.2¢€
Granted 1,949,00: 3.81 10/19/201%
Exercisec (1,421,10) 1.8¢
Canceled / Expire (525,000 3.6(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 9,441,91! $ 2.52
Granted — —
Exercisec (1,179,53) 2.2¢
Canceled / Expire — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 8,262,37 $ 2.5
Number of
Warrants

Outstanding  Exercise Price
4,864,26. 1.18-1.90
928,70! 2.00- 3.00
2,469,41. 3.00- 4.99

8,262,371

7. Related Parties

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coynjpanirred costs of $64,500 related to work perfet
by a related party and its affiliate, in connectwith the Companyg lead products. On December 31, 2007
Companys outstanding payables included $3,100 payableeaadlated party and its affiliates. There wer
accounts receivable from related parties on Deceibe2007.

Additionally, a member of the Company’s Board ofdaiors is a member of the Company’s outside cdunse
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8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of th@¥adhg at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Laboratory equipmer $1,933,07. $ 1,555,76:
Leasehold improvemen 2,809,55¢ 2,089,29:
Computer equipmel 178,64« 357,94¢
Furniture and fixture 290,63’ 205,62¢

Construction i-progress — —

5,211,91. 4,208,63.
Less- accumulated depreciatic (3,732,23) (2,888,31)

Property, plant and equipment, | $1,479,67 $1,320,31!

9. Notes Payable

On March 20, 2006, SIGA entered into a Bridge Newechase Agreement (“Note Purchase Agreemaenitf)
a third party for the sale of three 8% Notes by Sl®r $1,000,000 each. The first, second and tNode:
were issued on March 20, 2006, April 19, 2006, ande 19, 2006, respectively. The proceeds of thes
were used by the Company for (i) expenses direetbted to the development of 86, (ii) expenses relat
to a potential business transaction with the tpiadty and (iii) corporate overhead. On October ZK)6, th
Company paid the third party $3,114,400 in fullagment of the three notes and interest accrueddher

On May 20, 2005, the Company borrowed approxima$#y6,000 under a Promissory Note payab
General Electric Capital Corporation. The note wagable in 36 monthly installments of principal antkres
of 10.31% per annum. The note was collateralizea Inyaster security agreement dated as of ApriRR9OE
and by specific property listed under the masteusty agreement. On September 2, 2007, the Compapaijic
the entire balance and related interest outstandidgr the Promissory Note.

10. Income Taxes

The Company has incurred losses since inceptioithAtave generated net operating loss carryforwairds
approximately $37,383,000 at December 31, 2007efderal and state income tax purposes. These
carryforwards are available to offset future tagabkcome and begin expiring in 2010 for federabime tax
purposes. As a result of a previous change in staaiership, the annual utilization of the net ofiagaloss
carryforwards is subject to limitation. The net myigng loss carryforwards and temporary differenegising
primarily from deferred research and developmeptases and differences in the treatment of intdagib
assets, result in a noncurrent deferred tax as&x@mber 31, 2007 and 2006 of approximately $211,(®0
and $19,057,000, respectively. In consideratiothefCompany’s accumulated losses and the unceriafiis
ability to utilize this deferred tax asset in thuire, the Company has recorded a valuation allog/ah an
equal amount on such date to fully offset the defetax asset.
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At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Compsargeferred tax assets (in thousands) are compuabete
following:

2007 2006
Net Operating Losse 14,57¢ 13,37:
Deferred Research and Development C 5,037 4,19¢
Amortization of Acquired Asse! 77¢ 81¢
Stock Based Compensati 40€ 184
Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipm 82C 48¢
Total Deferred Tax Asst 21,62 19,057
Valuation Allowance (21,627 (19,057
Net Deferred Tax Asse $ — 3 —

Following is a summary of changes in our valuatidiowance for deferred tax assets as of and fory&as:
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 (in thds$an

Additions Charged

Balance at to Costs and Balance at End ¢
December 31 Beginning of Yea Expense! Deduction: Year
2007 $ 19,057 $ 2,60: $ 39 $ 21,62:
2006 $ 16,411 $ 2,64¢ $— $ 19,057
2005 $ 16,09( $ 321 $— $ 16,41

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008;dhgpanys effective tax rate differs from the fed¢
statutory rate principally due to net operatingstess and other temporary differences for which nmebewas
recorded, state taxes and other permanent diffesenc

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from th&UFederal Statutory income tax rate of 34% devis:

2007 2006
Statutory federal income tax re -34.0(%  -34.0(%
State tax benefit, net of federal ta: -6.6%% -3.91%
Other -8.62% 10.61%
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: 49.31% 27.3(%
Effective tax rate 0.00(% 0.0(%
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11. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating lease commitments

As of December 31, 2007, our purchase obligatisasat material. The Company leases certain feslian
office space under operating leases. Minimum futerdgal commitments under operating leases havirg n
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year ame: foninimum payments under notes payable arellasvi

Year ended December @ Lease obligation
2008 576,94t
2009 579,64
2010 466,44¢
2011 443,74¢

Total $ 2,066,79:

Other

On December 20, 2006, PharmAthene, Inc. (“PharmAdhefiled an action against SIGA in the Cour
Chancery in the State of Delaware, captioRedrmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies,.|IM€.A. No. 2627N.
In its Complaint, PharmAthene asks the Court tcepitie Company to enter into a license agreemetfn
PharmAthene with respect to SIGX6, as well as issue a declaration that we angeablto execute suct
license agreement, and award damages resultingdtmraupposed breach of that obligation. Pharm/Adhads
alleges that the Company breached an obligatioregmtiate such a license agreement in good fastinedl a:
seeks damages for promissory estoppel and unjuitherent based on supposed information, capita
assistance that PharmAthene allegedly provided®ASluring the negotiation process. On January(®7:
SIGA filed a motion to dismiss the Complaint in éstirety for failure to state a claim upon whietief can b
granted. The Company moved to stay discovery onalgr26, 2007 and this motion was granted on M&
2007. On January 16, 2008, the Court of ChancenyedeSIGAs motion to dismiss and lifted the stay
discovery. Both parties to the litigation have ¢ansling document requests and discovery is proogedihe
Company filed its answer to the Complaint on Jayn@4r, 2008. SIGA plans to defend itself vigorously.

From time to time, the Company is involved in digsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinanyrse o
business. The Company believes that there is rer dibpute or litigation pending that could havelividually
or in the aggregate, a material adverse effectsoiiniancial position, results of operations ortclisws.
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12. Financial Information By Quarter (Unaudited) (in thousands, except for per share data)

2007 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31 Total
Revenue! $ 1867 $ 1,46( $ 1,60¢ $ 1,768 $ 6,69¢
Selling, general & administrati $ 877 $ 1,14 $ 79¢ $ 89z $ 3,70¢
Research and developme $ 265 $ 2,201 $ 2,34: $ 2,75C $ 9,94
Patent preparation fe: $ 13 $ 127 $ 59 $ 191 $ b5It
Operating los: $ (1,797) $ (2,010 $ (1,585 $ (2,07)) $ (7,467)
Net income (loss $ (3,14 $ 527 $ (2,499 $ (53] $ (5,639
Net loss per share: basicand dilu  $ (0.1) $ 0.0Z $ (0.09) $ (002 $ (0.17)
Market price range for common stc

High $ 6.04 $ 59 $ 4.7C $ 4.5 $ 5.9

Low $ 3.3¢€ $ 321 $ 252 $ 2.9t $ 252
2006 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31  Total
Revenue: $ 1394 $ 1,45¢ $ 2,03¢ $ 2,36¢ $ 7,25¢
Selling, general & administrati\ $ 94z $ 1,49 $ 80z $ 1,38i $ 4,62«
Research and developm $ 1658 $ 2,431 $ 2,15¢ $ 2,90/ $ 9,14¢
Patent preparation fe: $ 10¢ $ 11¢ $ 36 $ 37 $ 29t
Operating los: $ (1,319 $ (2,579 $ (960 $ (1,95%) $ (6,810
Net loss $ (283 $(215) $ (657 $ (4,25) $ (9,899
Net loss per share: basic and dilu $ (0.1)) $ (0.0¢) $ (0.02) $ (0.19 $ (0.3%)
Market price range for common stc

High $ 1.64 $ 1.81 $ 2.3t $ 5.5 $ 5.5C

Low $ 087 $ 1.1¢ $ 1.0C $ 1.4C $ 0.8i
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

None.
ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statemersgt

Our management is responsible for thegirty and objectivity of all information presentiedthis annua
report. The consolidated financial statements vpeepared in conformity with accounting principlesngrally
accepted in the United States of America and irelathounts based on managensefest estimates al
judgments. Management believes the consolidatethial statements fairly reflect the form and sabsé of
transactions and that the financial statement$yfa@present the Compargy/financial position and results
operations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Dit@s, which is composed solely of independent dms¢
meets regularly with the independent auditors, évaterhouseCoopers LLP and representative
management to review accounting, financial repgrtinternal control and audit matters, as welltesriature
and extent of the audit effort. The Audit Commitieeresponsible for the engagement of the indepr
auditors. The independent auditors have free atodgbe Audit Committee.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure contnadspgocedures to ensure that material informatedating to the
Company, including its consolidated subsidiarissmiade known to the officers who certify the Conmypan
financial reports and to other members of senionagament and the Board of Directors. Based on
evaluation as of December 31, 2007, our chief exexwfficer and chief financial officer have condkd tha
the Company’s disclosure controls and proceduresdédined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 1B#{e) under th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) destfe to ensure that the information requiredbt
disclosed by the Company in the reports that ésfibor submits under the Securities Exchange AG08#, as
amended, is recorded, processed, summarized aodeepvithin the time periods specified in Secastanc
Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that sfohmation is accumulated and communicated to
Companys management, including its chief executive offioel chief financial officer, as appropriate to al
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establgghamd maintaining adequate internal control ovaartial
reporting and for the effectiveness of internal tooinover financial reporting, as such term is deél in
Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15#5(f) of the Exchange Act. Our internal control pfieancial reporting is designe
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebiléliaof financial reporting and the preparatiohfmancial
statements prepared for external purposes in aanoedwith generally accepted accounting principl@st
internal control over financial reporting includeésose policies and procedures that (a) pertain he
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detzilirately and fairly reflect the transactions disgosition of
assets; (b) provide reasonable assurance thatttéoiss are recorded as necessary to permit préparaf
financial statements in accordance with generatigepted accounting principles, and that receiptd
expenditures are being made only in accordance aithorizations of management and the directorthe
Company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance diagaprevention or timely detection of unauthori
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company'sets that could have a material effect on the fire
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or a¢
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechtorisk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changamditions, or that the degree of compliance il
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effeative of the Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 basethe framework set forth imternal Control—ntegrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadriee Treadway Commission. Based on
evaluation, management concluded that the Compantgimal control over financial reporting was etfee as
of December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2007 has |
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indepgragistered public accounting firm, as statedhigir
report which is included in this Form-K.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this item is imporated by reference from our Proxy Statementttier 200:
Annual Meeting of Shareholdel

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

Information required by this item is imporated by reference from our Proxy Statementttier 200:
Annual Meeting of Shareholdel

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related
Stockholder Matters

Information required by this item is imporated by reference from our Proxy Statementttier 200!
Annual Meeting of Shareholdel

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certainmgmensation plan information with respect to bothui
compensation plans approved by security holders eandty compensation plans not approved by sec
holders as of December 31, 2007:

Number of securities
remaining available fc
Number of securitie
Weighted-average future issuance under
to be issued upon exercise price of equity compensation

exercise of outstanding plans (excluding
outstanding option: options, warrants  securities reflected in
Plan Category warrants and rights and rights column (a))
@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders ( 7,969,76! $ 2.2¢ 1,545,96.
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde 190,00( $ 2.0C —
Total 8,159,76! $ 2.27 1,545,96:

(1) SIGA Technologies, Inc., Amended and Restag&dblIncentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan.

As of December 31, 2007, options awarded outsid¢hef Companys equity compensation plan inclut
125,000 options awarded to an employee and 65,@idns awarded to consultants. In May 2000,
Company awarded its Chief Scientific Officer opsoto acquire 125,000 shares of the Compamgmmol
stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per shareuly 2000, the Company entered into an agreemelrit &
consultant to serve as the Companypublic relations agent and awarded the consutiptibns to acquil
shares of the Comparsy’common stock. As of December 31, 2007, the ctarstuholds 27,500 options ¢
37,500 options with an exercise price of $1.50gberre and $1.75 per share, respectively.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaction:

Information required by this item is imporated by reference from our Proxy Statementttier 200:
Annual Meeting of Shareholdel

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

Information required by this item is imporated by reference from our Proxy Statementttier 200!
Annual Meeting of Shareholdel
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Sched:
(@) (1) and (2). Financial Statements and Financigtatements Schedule.
See Index to Financial Statements under Item &it IPhereof where these documents are listed.
(@) (3). Exhibits.

The following is a list of exhibits:

Exhibit
No. Description
3(@) Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Compangcgrporated by reference to Form 3S-

Registration Statement of the Company dated MayQ00 (No. 33-36682)).

3(b) Form of Certificate of Amendment of the Restatedrtiieate of Incorporation of SIG
Technologies, Inc., (Incorporated by referenceh® €ompanys proxy statement on Schedule :
dated June 15, 200

3(c) Bylaws of the Company (Incorporated by referencé=¢om SB2 Registration Statement of -
Company dated March 10, 1997 (No. -23037)).

4(a) Form of Common Stock Certificate (Incorporated bference to Form SB-Registration Stateme
of the Company dated March 10, 1997 (No.-23037)).

4(b) Warrant Agreement dated as of September 15, 1986ba the Company and Vincent A. Fisct
(1) (Incorporated by reference to Form 3BRegistration Statement of the Company dated Maé
1997 (No. 33-23037)).

4(c) Warrant Agreement dated as of November 18, 199&dmet the Company and David de Wees
(Incorporated by reference to Form @BRegistration Statement of the Company dated Mafx
1997 (No. 33-23037)).

4(d) Warrant Agreement between the Company and Stefapitalla dated September 9, 1¢
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s AnrRigport on Form 1&SB for the year endt
December 31, 1999

4(e) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2B®3, between the Company and Plexus Va
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to For-K of the Company filed June 9, 200

4(f) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Augu3t 2003, between the Company
MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. (Incorporatedrbference to Form &-of the Company file
August 18, 2003)

10(a) License and Research Support Agreement betweefdhgany and The Rockefeller Univers
dated as of January 31, 1996; and Amendment tcmké&cand Research Support Agreement bet
the Company and The Rockefeller University, datedof October 1, 1996(2) (Incorporated
reference to Form SB-2 Registration Statement ef Gompany dated March 10, 1997 (No. 333-
23037)).

10(b) Research Agreement between the Company and Emaweidity, dated as of January 31, 199
(Incorporated by reference to Form SBRegistration Statement of the Company dated Mafx
1997 (No. 33-23037)).

10(c) Research Support Agreement between the CompanyCaedon State University, dated as
January 31, 1996(2) (Incorporated by referenceotoFSB2 Registration Statement of the Comg
dated Marct
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10(d)

10(h)

10(i)

10())

10(k)

10(l)

10(m)

10(p)

10(q)

10(r)

10(s)

10(u)

10(x)

10, 1997 (No. 3323037)). Letter Agreement dated as of March 5, 1@08ontinue the Reseal
Support Agreement (Incorporated by reference tatimpany’s Annual Report on Form K&B for
the year ended December 31, 19!

Option Agreement between the Company and Oregote Staiversity, dated as of November
1999 and related Amendments to the Agreement (frcated by reference to the Compaknnua
Report on Form 1-KSB for the year ended December 31, 19

Clinical Trials Agreement between the Company aradidwhal Institute of Allergy and Infectio
Diseases, dated as of July 1, 1997 (Incorporatedefarence to Amendment No. 1 to Form 3B-
Registration Statement of the Company dated July1997 (No. 33-23037)).

Research Agreement between the Company and ThamRkdeoundation of State University of N
York, dated as of July 1, 1997(2) (Incorporatedrbference to Amendment No. 1 to Form 3B-
Registration Statement of the Company dated Julj1997 (No. 33-23037)).

Collaborative Research and License Agreement betitveeCompany and Wyeth, dated as of Ju
1997(2) (Incorporated by reference to AmendmentNm Form SB2 Registration Statement of
Company dated September 2, 1997 (No0.-23037)).

Research Collaboration and License Agreement betwke Company and The Washing
University, dated as of February 6, 1998 (2) (Ipovated by reference to the Companynnua
Report on Form 1-KSB for the year ended December 31, 19

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release betweelCtimepany and The Washington Univers
dated as of February 17, 2000 (Incorporated byeafe to the Comparg/’/Annual Report on For
1C-KSB for the year ended December 31, 19

Technology Transfer Agreement between the CompadyMedimmune, Inc., dated as of Febrt
10, 1998 (Incorporated by reference to the CommaAyinual Report on Form 1KSB for the yee
ended December 31, 199

Option Agreement between the Company and Ross Biodivision of Abbott Laboratories, da
February 28, 2000 (Incorporated by reference tadQbmpany’s Annual Report on Form K&B for
the year ended December 31, 19!

Agreement between the Company and Oregon Stateelsitiy for the Company to provide conti
research services to the University dated Septer@iBer2000 (Incorporated by reference to
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -KSB for the year ended December 31, 20

License and Research Agreements between the Conguahythe Regents of the University
California dated December 6, 2000 (Incorporateddigrence to the ComparsyAnnual Report ¢
Form 1(-KSB for the year ended December 31, 20

Amended and Restated 1996 Incentive and Raalified Stock Option Plan dated August 15, 2
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s AnriReport on Form 1&SB for the year ends
December 31, 2001), as amended (as set forth iRdira ¢-K of the Company filed May 27, 200¢

Research and License Agreement between the CongrahyfransTech Pharma, Inc. dated Oct
1, 2002 (Filed with the Company’s Annual ReportFamrm 10KSB for the year ended December
2002 initially filed with the Securities and ExclggnCommission on March 31, 200

Contract between the Company and the Departmethiedf)S Army dated December 12, 2002 (F
with the Company’s Annual Report on Form K8B for the year ended December 31, 2002 init
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiviarch 31, 2003’
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10(y)

10(aa)

10(bb)

10(dd)

10(ee)

10(ff)

10(gg)

10(hh)

10(ii)

10(Gj)

10(kk)

10(1ly

10(mm’

10(o0)

10(pp)

10(qq)

10(rr)

Contract between the Company and Four Star GroupddBebruary 5, 2003 (Filed with
Company’s Annual Report on Form K&B for the year ended December 31, 2002 initiéilsd
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Madc 2003)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Aug@st 2003, between the Company
MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. (Incorporatedrbference to Form 8- of the Company file
August 18, 2003)

Letter Agreement dated October 8, 2003 among thmpaay, MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings |
and TransTech Pharma, Inc. (Incorporated by referéo Form & of the Company filed Augu
18, 2003).

Non-Employee Director Compensation Summary Sheet (parated by reference to the Company’
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Director Compensation Program, effective April 2005 (as set forth in the Formks-of the
Company filed April 26, 2005

Service Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2005, betwthe Company and TransTech Pharma
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed May 3, 200t

Master Security Agreement, dated as of April 29020between General Electric Caf
Corporation and the Company (Incorporated by refegdo Form & of the Company filed May
2005).

Letter Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2005, betwiee Company and John Odden (Incorpo
by reference to Form-K of the Company filed August 11, 200!

Agreement, dated as of September 14, 2005, bet8aémn Louis University and the Comp:
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed September 20, 20(

Agreement, dated as of September 22, 2005, bettheednited States Army Medical Research
Material Command and the Company (Incorporatedefigrence to Form 8- of the Company file
September 27, 200~

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Nove® #2605, between Iroquois Master Fund |
Cranshire Capital, L.P., Omicron Master Trust, &fietd Fiduciary LLC and the Compa
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed November 4, 200

Exclusive Findeis Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2005, bettteeBhemano Group, Inc. ¢
the Company (Incorporated by reference to Fo-K of the Company filed November 4, 200

Letter Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2006yédt the Company and Thomas N. Konz
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed February 7, 200

Bridge Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of Mai@h 2D06, between the Company
PharmAthene, Inc. (Incorporated by reference tarFé-K of the Company filed March 22, 2001

Security Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2006ywéen the Company and PharmAthene,
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed March 22, 2001

8% Note, dated as of March 20, 2006, between thepgaay and PharmAthene, Inc. (Incorpor:
by reference to Form-K of the Company filed March 22, 2001

Separation Agreement, dated as of March 31, 208&yden the Company and Bernard Ka
(Incorporated by reference to Fori-K of the Company filed April 3, 2006
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10(ss)

10(tt)

10(uu)

10(wv)

10(ww)

10(xx)

10(yy)

10(zz)

10(aaa

10(bbb

14

21
23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

8% Note, dated as of April 19, 2006, between thenfamy and PharmAthene, Inc. (Incorporate
reference to Form-K of the Company filed April 20, 2006

Voting Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2006, amdwg Gompany, TransTech Pharma, |
MacAndrews & Forbes, Inc., Howard Gittis, Donald Brapkin, James J. Antal, Thomas
Constance, Mehmet C. Oz, Eric A. Rose and PaulaBas(Incorporated by reference to Forrq 8-
of the Company filed June 13, 200

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Jun®®6,2among the Company, SIGA Acquisil
Corp. and PharmAthene, Inc. (Incorporated by refeedo Form 8< of the Company filed June :
2006).

8% Note, dated as of June 19, 2006, between thep&@wyrand PharmAthene, Inc. (Incorporate:
reference to Form-K of the Company filed June 20, 200

Agreement, dated as of September 29, 2006, bet®8&8A Technologies, Inc. and the Natic
Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases of fNational Institutes for Health (Incorporated
reference to Form -Q/A of the Company filed November 13, 200

Finder's Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2006, betwleerCompany and Empire Finan
Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Fo-K of the Company filed October 20, 200

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of OctbBe006, between the Company, Iroq
Master Fund Ltd., Cranshire Capital, L.P., Omicidaster Trust, Rockmore Investment Ma
Fund, Ltd., and Smithfield Fiduciary LLC (Incorpted by reference to Form8-of the Compan
filed October 20, 2006

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedf aranuary 22, 2007, between
Company and Dennis E. Hruby (Incorporated by refegeto Form & of the Company file
January 22, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedf atanuary 22, 2007, between
Company and Thomas N. Konatich (Incorporated bgregfce to Form & of the Company file
January 22, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedf atanuary 31, 2007, between
Company and Eric A. Rose (Incorporated by referdnceorm 8K of the Company filed Janue
31, 2007).

The Company’s Code of Ethics and Business Condncbiporated by reference to the Company’
Annual Report on Form -KSB for the year ended December 31, 20

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification pursuant to Rules 13a-15(e) or 15de) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200Z— Chief Executive Officer

Certification pursuant to Rules 13a-15(e) or 15de) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z— Chief Financial Officer

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358, aalopted pursuant to Section 906 of
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200Z2— Chief Executive Officer

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358, aalopted pursuant to Section 906 of
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200Z- Chief Financial Officer
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(1) These agreements were entered into prior to thersevsplit of the Comparg’Common Stock ar
therefore, do not reflect such reverse s

(2) Confidential information is omitted and identifiegt an * and filed separately with the SEC with ques
for Confidential Treatmen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sect®orl15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984, registrar
has duly caused this report to be signed on italbély the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 13, 200 By: Eric A. Rose

Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the SiesiiExchange Act of 1934, this report has begnesi beloy
by the following persons on behalf of the registi@md in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title of Capacities Date

Chief Executive Officer and
/sl Eric A. Rose, M.D Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Eric A. Rose, M.D. March 13, 2008

Chief Financial Officer
/s/ Thomas N. Konatich (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

Thomas N. Konatich March 13, 2008

/s/ Steven L. Fasman

Steven L. Fasman Director March 13, 2008

/s/James J. Antal

James J. Antal Director March 10, 2008

/s Thomas E. Constance

Thomas E. Constance Director March 13, 2008

/sl Adnan M. Mjalli, Ph.D.

Adnan M. Mjalli, Ph.D. Director March 11, 2008

/s/ Mehmet C. Oz, M.D.

Mehmet C. Oz, M.D. Director March 12, 2008

/s/ Scott Hammer, M.D

Scott Hammer, M.D. Director March 13, 2008

/s/Paul G. Savas

Paul G. Savas Director March 11, 2008



/sl Judy S. Slotki

Judy S. Slotkin Director March 13, 2008

/s/ Michael Weiner, M.D.

Michael Weiner, M.D. Director March 12, 2008
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Siga Acquisition Corp. Delaware

Siga Technologies, Inc. United Kingdom



Exhibit 2 3.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referendbe Registration Statement on F
S-3 (Nos. 333-129756 and 3338796) of SIGA Technologies, Inc. of our reported
March 13, 2008 relating to the financial statemertd the effectiveness of internal cor
over financial reporting, which appears in thisfRdrO-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York,
March 12, 2008



Exhibit 31.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fof¥Klof SIGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesaontain any untrue statement of a material factoit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under wiiath
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémend other financial information included iisth
report, fairly present in all material respectsfinancial condition, results of operations andhctisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentelisnreport;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintanin
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah@nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andriate
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgistant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and puesdor caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@ngare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those eijti
particularly during the period in which this rep@rteing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@porting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supem, to provide reasonable assurance regardig th
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaocat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presén
this report our conclusions about the effectiveradésbe disclosure controls and procedures, aseéhd
of the period covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gastrants internal control over financial reporting t
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case
of an annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tregistrants
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrdggstrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeint functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialakaesses in the design or operation of internairobn
over financial reporting which are reasonably ljked adversely affect the registrant’s ability ézord,
process, summarize and report financial informatord

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotues management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2008

/sl ERic A. Rose
Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification by Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Thomas N. Konatich, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fof@¥Klof SIGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesontain any untrue statement of a material facioit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under wiioth
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iisth
report, fairly present in all material respectsfinancial condition, results of operations andhctisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentelisnreport;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintanin
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah@nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andriate
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thgistant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@ngare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those eijti
particularly during the period in which this rep@rteing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@porting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supem, to provide reasonable assurance regardig th
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presén
this report our conclusions about the effectiveradésbe disclosure controls and procedures, aseéhd
of the period covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gastrants internal control over financial reporting t
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case
of an annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tregistrants
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofrdggstrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeint functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialakaesses in the design or operation of internairobn
over financial reporting which are reasonably ljked adversely affect the registrant’s ability ézord,
process, summarize and report financial informatord

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotues management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2008

/s/ THomAs N. KONATICH
Thomas N. Konatich
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGA Teclagies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2007 as filed with theiftées and Exchange Commission on the date hétteef
“Report”), I, Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D., Chief Execué Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the bésty
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Reportl§apresents, in all material respects, the finahci
condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compady a
will be retained by the Company and furnished o $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghu
request.

/s/ BRic A. RosE
Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
March 13, 2008




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGA Teclagies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2007 as filed with theiftées and Exchange Commission on the date hétteef
“Report”), I, Thomas N. Konatich, Chief Financiaffider of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18

U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the bésty
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahci
condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compady a

will be retained by the Company and furnished o $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghu
request.

/s THOMAS N. KONATICH
Thomas N. Konatich
Chief Financial Officer
March 13, 2008



